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1 PRESIDENT’S 
REPORT

With the Australian Medical Council (AMC) accreditation review and the launch of the RANZCO 2017-2020 
Strategic Plan, the 2016-2017 financial year was a big year for the College, and one which very much sets the 
scene for the years to come.

As well as the AMC review, RANZCO this year developed and launched our strategic plan for the 2017-2020. The 
objectives laid out in the strategic plan are supported by the direction of the AMC review, focusing on improving 
the College’s processes and programs, building the role of the College as a collaborative leader in the eye care 
sector, ensuring access to eye care for all communities across Australia and New Zealand, and providing the 
best possible education and support for our members. We have appointed Dr Catherine Green as our Dean of 
Education, to provide strategic leadership to the improvements required by the AMC review.

To meet these objectives, we need to consider not just the nuts and bolts of what the College does, but also 
the culture of the College and of the places that our members work. With this in mind, we have launched the 
RANZCO Diversity and Inclusion Committee, chaired by my predecessor as President, Dr Brad Horsburgh. The 
Committee’s remit is to ensure that all aspects of the College’s work are representative and inclusive and that 
we promote the positive role that diversity plays within RANZCO and within the communities we all serve. The 
Committee’s work is already influencing how we think about the representation of women and ethnic minorities 
within the College. We cannot guarantee equal outcomes but we do strive to provide an equal shot to everybody. 
It remains an enduring challenge to our education system to reconcile the pursuit of diversity with the ideal of 
equal treatment and dignity. Diversity is an important value in our profession and we should provide a high-
quality education to all, regardless of their background.

We are beginning to work more closely with employers to ensure that our members feel well supported and 
valued in their workplaces, as well as in the College.

Our strategic objectives also have a focus on being leaders in collaborative care, as highlighted in our tagline, 
and we have made great strides in this area over the year. Not only have we continued, at both College and 
branch level, to engage with GPs and optometrists and provide upskilling sessions at our Congress and scientific 
meetings, but we have also launched the RANZCO collaborative care referral pathways for glaucoma, AMD and 
diabetic retinopathy (DR) and a partnership with Specsavers to run a pilot study to assess the efficiency of the 
guidelines. The first of these pilot studies, for the glaucoma referral pathway, was launched July 2017. Meanwhile 
the AMD and DR referral pathways are being further evaluated and refined ahead of potential pilot studies.

RANZCO has been engaging with the government and the MBS on issues such as intravitreal injections, the 
revision of the goniotomy number to exclude its use for minimally invasice glaucoma surgery (MIGS), crosslinking 
for keratoconus and the use of avastin for AMD. We have had positive signs on all these areas, particularly in 
relation to the goniotomy number. RANZCO’s intervention on this issue included direct engagement with the 
Minister, resulting in a commitment that the MSAC review would be expedited and interim measures would be 
considered. The MSAC review is now expected to be completed by the end of 2017 and an interim MBS item 
number has been introduced to allow MIGS to take place in certain situations.

We continue to engage with the Minister, the Department of Health and MSAC on these and other issues, 
including workforce distribution, which was highlighted as a key issue in our meetings with both the Minister for 
Health and the Minister for Indigenous Health. There is strong political will for closing the gap and recognition 
that addressing workforce distribution issues in all medical specialties is a key part of achieving that. As well as 
launching our workforce survey, the College is working on developing of a model to address undersupply in 
regional and remote areas. The results of the survey are expected to feed into this work and we hope to present a 
plan to the Minister in the coming year.
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Finally, a major achievement in 2016-2017 was RANZCO’s successful bid to host the World Ophthalmology 
Conference (WOC) in Melbourne in 2022. Working with the Melbourne Convention Bureau, RANZCO staff and 
Fellows put together an outstanding bid that highlighted RANZCO’s scientific credentials and ability to attract 
global leaders in ophthalmology and ophthalmic sciences, as well as the attractions of Melbourne and the 
surrounding areas. All involved should be proud of the excellent work that was put in, securing us victory over 
the other bidders. Now the work begins to plan what we are sure will be a hugely successful WOC 2022.

In conclusion, 2016-2017 has been a year of rising to challenges for RANZCO. I have been proud to have been 
involved in what I think will be a seminal year in the progress of the College and I have been pleased to work 
alongside our excellent CEO, David Andrews, who has been tireless in in driving the interests of ophthalmology 
in Australia and New Zealand. All of RANZCO’s staff and the many Fellows who give up so much of their time 
to support RANZCO’s work are to be thanked for their dedication and hard work to ensure that the College 
emerged stronger than ever and ready to meet the challenges ahead.

All of this would not have been possible, however, without the work of Dr Brad Horsburgh, who stood down as 
President in November 2016. The work that Brad oversaw to prepare the College for the AMC review, and for 
the changes that are now being implemented, was invaluable. His service as President was exemplary and I am 
honoured to have been chosen to follow in his footsteps.

I look forward to continuing to work with the RANZCO staff, Fellows and associates in the coming year to further 
progress the work that we have started.

A/Prof Mark Daniell, President, RANZCO

Incoming President A/Prof Mark Daniell receiving the Chain of Office from outgoing President Dr Brad Horsburgh
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2 CENSOR-IN-CHIEF’S 
REPORT

In 2016 the Australian Medical Council (AMC) launched revised standards for all medical colleges. The revised standards have 
an enhanced focus on trainee wellbeing, patient safety and indigenous health. Changes were also made to bring standards 
for continuing profession development and assessment of specialist international medical graduates in line with Medical 
Board of Australia and Medical Council of New Zealand guidelines. The revised standards include 34 new standards to be 
met either straightaway or within 12 months.

RANZCO was the first college to undergo review for accreditation under this new standards regime. This meant a great deal 
of work preparing for the review, which took place in mid – 2016. The AMC accreditation report, published in October 2016, 
granted RANZCO reaccreditation as the specialist medical college responsible for the education of ophthalmologists in both 
Australia and New Zealand for three years. 

While the AMC review was largely positive, highlighting in particular RANZCO’s excellent standard of teaching, fair 
and transparent exams and the high quality of graduates, it did identify areas for improvement and set a number of 
requirements and recommendations against these. Ensuring that RANZCO is in a place to not only meet but, wherever 
possible, exceed the requirements and recommendations laid down in the AMC’s report, as well as the objectives 
highlighted in RANZCO’s new strategic plan for 2017 – 2020, has ensured that the 2016 – 2017 financial year has been one of 
change and development, particularly within the education team.

With Dr Mark Renehan deciding to bring his eight year stint as Censor-in-Chief to an end in 2016 – although thankfully 
staying on long enough to see the College through the all important AMC review process – I took up the mantle in 
September 2016. Following the AMC’s report, the RANZCO education team was restructured to ensure we have the capacity 
and experience to meet the AMC’s requirements and recommendations. This restructuring included recruiting a new Deputy 
CEO and Head of Education, Ruth Ferraro, and a new Dean of Education, Dr Catherine Green OA who was appointed towards 
the end of the financial year.

Work to meet the AMC’s requirements and recommendations began even before the report was officially published, 
particularly in those areas where the AMC’s requirements aligned with the objectives identified in the RANZCO strategic 
planning process. This includes changes to both training and selection to provide the best possible services to our members 
and to ensure that we can meet the eye care needs of all communities, in all areas of Australia and New Zealand.

We are considering a new approach to selection, including changes that seek to improve representation of Indigenous 
trainees through identified Indigenous trainee places and other measures of inclusion. We have revitalised RANZCO’s 
training post accreditation standards to include certification of employer policies. We have launched NUCLEUS to support 
RANZCO Fellows’ preparation for practice accreditation. We have also designed multi-source feedback at two points in the 
existing vocational training program, to be launched in 2018, to establish career-long reflective practice behaviours. Under 
the guidance of Cathy Green we are undertaking a comprehensive review of the entire curriculum looking not just at what 
our registrars need to learn but how we impart and assess that knowledge throughout training.

The measures that have been implemented since the AMC review and the strategic planning process are the first steps in 
modernising the education and training service that we provide and ensuring that RANZCO accredited ophthalmologists 
continue to be among the best ophthalmologists in the world. Our aim is to not only to meet the AMC requirements and 
recommendations but to exceed them wherever possible. We expect to be able to demonstrate this unequivocally when we 
meet with the AMC on 28 September 2017 to detail the progress we have made so far.

While this has been a busy year for RANZCO, and there are more busy years to come as we continue to improve the 
education service that we provide to trainees and Fellows, it is worth noting that an extraordinary amount of positive 
change has been implemented in a short amount of time. This could not have been achieved without the dedication and 
support of the RANZCO staff and the many Fellows and other members who volunteer their valuable time and expertise to 
support the College. All those involved must be thanked for their tireless efforts on behalf of the College.

Dr Justin Mora, Censor-in-Chief, RANZCO
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3 CEO’S 
REPORT

With our aim to be the Leaders in Collaborative Eye Care at the forefront of our minds, this year we have been making 
great progress towards meeting the requirements and recommendations set by the Australian Medical Council (AMC) 
accreditation review. The conditions have aligned well with the 2017 – 2020 strategic plan and we are on track to ensure we 
continue to produce some of the world’s best ophthalmologists. 

The success of the RANZCO 2016 Congress in Melbourne is testament to why our Annual Scientific Congress continues to 
be the leading medical eye care event in the region. This was our largest event yet, attracting more than 1500 delegates, 
sponsors and exhibitors from Australia, New Zealand and further afield. 

Continuing on from this success, a highlight of the 2016 – 2017 year is that we have recruited and appointed the College’s 
first Dean of Education, Dr Catherine Green AO, who will work alongside our Censor-in-Chief, Dr Justin Mora, and our Deputy 
CEO and Head of Education, Ruth Ferraro. Ruth joined us in October 2016 and has been instrumental in implementing the 
requirements around changes to our governance following the AMC review. These changes come alongside successful 
realignment of staff to ensure we are able to meet the College’s objectives and KPIs.

August 2016 saw the launch of the RANZCO Guidelines Initiative; creating referral pathways for glaucoma, AMD and diabetic 
retinopathy and helping to cement RANZCO’s role as leaders of collaborative eye care. These referral pathways have been 
made available to all optometrists and GPs to help improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the referral process. We have 
also launched a pilot study, working with Specsavers to measure the impact of the pathways. This collaborative effort has 
come about in large part thanks to Dr Brad Horsburgh, who championed a collaborative approach for the benefit of patients 
during his time as President, which came to an end in 2016. 

A/Prof Mark Daniell took up the role as RANZCO President in late November 2016 and has already used the opportunity to 
support our Fellows by driving policy development to meet the AMC recommendations for a fair and safe workplace. 

This year has also seen to the development of new policies to ensure the professional environment continues to be a great 
place to work. The policies include the Complaints Resolution Policy, the Conflicts of Interest Policy and the Discrimination, 
Harassment and Bullying Policy. This will allow easier access for anyone who wishes to dispute a decision or make a 
complaint and provides improved guidance for those tasked with assessing complaints or adverse decisions. The RANZCO 
Code of Conduct is also be revised, after extensive consultation and careful consideration, to ensure that it also provides 
clear guidelines about appropriate standards of behaviour for RANZCO members.

Working closely with the branches and SIGs, we have also been able to get finalisation and agreement of new Terms of 
Reference for branches and SIGs to ensure that our governance and procedures are all up to standard.

As well as the essential task of meeting the requirements of the AMC accreditation process, RANZCO’s work over the year 
has been targeted at meeting our strategic objectives, which focus on education, training and accreditation; advocacy and 
awareness; member engagement, standards and broader college activities. This annual report gives an overview of the work 
that has been undertaken to help us to meet these objectives and to work towards achieving our mission of improving eye 
healthcare through education, communication, collaboration and advocacy, nationally and internationally.

In terms of finances, RANZCO had another good year as you will see from the financial report at the end. By this I mean we 
made a healthy surplus, mainly through improvements in investments, and successful branch meetings but operationally we 
essentially broke even, as is appropriate for a not-for-profit organisation.

Finally, the work of RANZCO is not possible without the dedication of staff and the many Fellows who volunteer their 
time. I am fortunate to work with people who are willing to be flexible and go the extra mile as necessary to improve 
ophthalmology as a profession and service, in particular the Board, well lead by Mark Daniell. I thank everyone for their 
support and look forward to another successful year.

Dr David Andrews, Chief Executive Officer, RANZCO
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OUR STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
RANZCO will realise its vision and deliver on its mission by way of five strategic priorities, 

all underpinned by our commitment to ethics and achieved through collaboration.

Education, 
Training & 

Accreditation

Advocacy & 
Awareness

Member 
Engagement

Standards College 
Activities

Facilitate the 
highest quality 

practice of 
Ophthalmology 

through evidence 
based education, 

training and 
accreditation.

Lead the policy 
debate as 

the trusted, 
authoritative 

source of 
information 

and research; 
and promote 

Ophthalmology 
as a medical 

specialty, body of 
knowledge and 

career.

Represent, 
support and 

foster our 
members’ 
interests; 
and build 

engagement, 
ownership and 

collegiality 
among them.

Set, monitor 
and maintain 
standards for 

the provision of 
highest quality 
Ophthalmology 

practice in 
Australia and New 

Zealand.

Deliver superior 
service and value 
to our members, 

partners and 
stakeholders to 
ensure ongoing 

sustainability.
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STRATEGIC PRIORITY ONE: 
EDUCATION, TRAINING AND 
ACCREDITATION
The education and training of ophthalmologists is 
RANZCO’s core function and is integral to our mission 
of improving eye healthcare both nationally and 
internationally. This is recognised in the first of our 
strategic priorities in the Strategic Plan 2017 – 2020, 
developed in 2016 and officially launched in January 
2017. Strategy Priority One states that we will facilitate 
the highest quality practice of ophthalmology through 
evidence based education, training and accreditation.

The 2016-2017 financial year has been a very busy time 
in all aspects of the College’s work, but especially in the 

field of education. The AMC review, which was handed 
down near the beginning of the financial year, affirmed 
many of the priority areas identified in the RANZCO 
Strategic Plan. While the strategic plan was not officially 
launched until January 2017, the College’s work against 
the objectives in the plan, and against the requirements 
and recommendations laid out in the AMC’s accreditation 
report, began much earlier. This meant that a number of 
important policy reviews and updates were completed as 
early as October 2016, well ahead of the AMC’s deadlines, 
which range from August 2017 to the end of 2019.
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2017 AMC REQUIREMENTS TRACKER

Overall, the AMC’s accreditation team had a lot of 
positive things to say about the RANZCO training 
program, in particular noting the dedication of Fellows 
providing training and serving on committees. They also 
commended the high quality of the training. 

However, a number of areas with room for improvement 
were identified and the report set out 53 requirements 
and recommendations in these areas, to be met over 
a period of three years, with the first interim report 
due in August 2017. Most of these requirements and 
recommendations were areas that had already been 
identified in the strategic planning process, particularly 
in terms of improving and modernising our education 
and training offer, increasing support for trainers and 
trainees, improving the diversity and inclusion of the 
ophthalmology profession and protecting our members 
from bullying and harassment.

To help guide our work in improving the educational 
service that we provide to trainees and the continuous 

professional development that we provide to 
ophthalmologists, RANZCO’s education team was 
restructured. This involved bringing in a Deputy CEO 
and Head of Education, Ruth Ferraro, in October 2016, 
and then appointing the College’s first ever Dean of 
Education, Dr Catherine Green OA, in May 2017. These 
two roles work alongside RANZCO’s Censor-in-Chief,  
Dr Justin Mora, to shape the future of RANZCO’s 
education and training services.

Over the year, the College has successfully reviewed, 
redrafted and/or introduced a number of policies, 
including the Reconsideration, Review and Appeals 
Policy; the Complaints Resolution Policy; the 
Discrimination, Harassment and Bullying Policy and the 
Conflict of Interest Policy. These core policies have been 
reviewed to ensure they are as clear and transparent as 
possible. They provide a framework to ensure that all 
RANZCO members and trainees are treated fairly and 
are supported throughout their education, training and 
continuous professional development.
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RANZCO’s processes around selecting new trainees 
was identified by both the College and the AMC 
as an area for improvement. The Qualification 
and Education Committee (QEC) held a selection 
workshop on improving Indigenous representation 
in the ophthalmology profession and addressing the 
workforce shortfall in rural and regional areas. Out of this 
meeting, a number of policies were suggested for future 
implementation including: 

• having identified places for Indigenous trainees 
• engaging directly with Indigenous groups such as 

AIDA and Te Ora and 
• introducing mandatory six month placements in 

regional clinics as part of the training program.

The RANZCO Examination Boards, including the 
Ophthalmic Sciences Examination Board, the Ophthalmic 
Basic Competences and Knowledge Examination Board, 
the Ophthalmic Pathology Examination Board and 
the RANZCO Advanced Clinical Examination Board, 
conducted consultations on the implementation of the 
enhanced online examinations project, with the results 
helping to shape implementation. The College has 
previously conducted two exams online (COPEM Module 
1 and COPEM Module 2), and is moving forward with 
this online platform for examinations, with the anatomy 
examination scheduled to take place in March 2018. The 
other examinations will be moved to the online format 
shortly after.

Each of the Examination Boards also reviewed standard 
setting processes and undertook refresher training on 
standard setting. They all also reviewed their borderline 
mark criteria and established their borderline score range 
for each exam. These borderline score ranges are used for 
special consideration situations, as outlined in the new 
examination policy, which was reviewed and updated on 
the in May 2017 by the QEC. 

Policies related to standard setting also feed in to the 
work of the Trainee Progression Committee, which 
provides a review service for trainees who are not meeting 
the required standard at their stage of training. The 
Committee examines the evidence and circumstances and 
makes a recommendation to the Censor-in-Chief about 
the trainee’s future. The Committee aims to provide a 
supportive role for both trainees and trainers by ensuring 
that there is space for independent review of decisions. 

Ensuring that RANZCO members are supported in their 
education, training and working lives has been a key 
feature of many of the reforms that the College has 
implemented over the year. The continuation of the 
Trainee Representative Group is vital to the College, and 
to improve the transparency of the election process, the 
representatives are now elected to the group by fellow 
trainees and a chair elected from among their ranks by the 
group. The role for this new group is to support trainees 
and provide them with representation on the QEC and the 
Council. Trainee representatives from the Group also serve 
on a number of committees, including the Diversity and 
Inclusion Committee and the Digital Interface Committee. 

The regional QEC chairs and Directors of Training work 
together to manage the training program in their 
networks, ensuring trainees have adequate support 
and overseeing term supervisors and clinical tutors. 
The Directors of Training are the lynch pin between the 
College administration and the training program. 

In addition, RANZCO staff play an important role in 
supporting trainees by providing information and 
answering enquiries, interacting with them through 
Moodle discussion boards, phone and email and liaising 
with their Directors of Training and QEC chairs. The College 
also facilitates a mentor program for trainees to help 
them build a supportive network and develop collegiate 
relationships.

During the year, the College also reformed our training 
post accreditation standards to include certification of 
employer policies. This work was led by the Trainee Post 
Accreditation Committee and aims to ensure that RANZCO 
members are supported in their work places by their 
employers, as well as by the College. The Committee also 
worked with the education team to approve the training 
posts in the Sydney Eye Network. The Committee and the 
wider QEC agreed a further three positions for Specialist 
Training Post funding, with Commonwealth Deeds 
planned for distribution in July 2017.

The S-IMG and NZ IMG Committees, which assess overseas 
ophthalmologists for comparability to RANZCO trained 
ophthalmologists in Australia and New Zealand, also 
participated in the presentation on guidelines related 
to the delegated authority that RANZCO receives from 
APHRA and the review of Specialist International Medical 
Graduates. This included a Deloitte audit team visiting 
the College to gather information for their review of the 
APHRA guidelines and implementation in advance of 
a deed for medical speciality colleges assessing S-IMG 
comparability. 

On the Continuous Professional Development (CPD) 
front, RANZCO’s professional development team and 
the CPD Committee have implemented a number 
of reforms and improvements in relation to lifelong 
learning addressing objectives from the strategic plan, 
requirements recommendations from the AMC review 
and new MBA requirements.  These have included 
supporting self-reflective practice by further investing 
in the RANZCO Clinical Audit Tool (RCAT). RCAT is used 
by Fellows and trainees to track, audit and report on 
cataract surgery trends and outcomes. 

The CPD Committee also participated in MBA/AHPRA 
workshops and consultation regarding revalidation in 
Australia and further work is already underway to ensure 
that RANZCO meets these requirements once they are 
released. 

In addition, the professional development team supported 
Fellows to ensure that an impressive 100 percent CPD 
compliance rate for our Fellows in 2016.

Finally, an important part of assuring that the education 
and training we provide to our members is of the highest 
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Applications for 
selection to the 
Vocational Training 
Program (VTP).

34 trainees successfully admitted and matched since  
1 July 2016: 13 female and 21 male.

• Average age at admission - 30.5 years
• Matched to training network preference

• first training network preference –  
32 out of 34

• second training network preference –   
2 out of 34

Appointed to:
• 7 in New Zealand
• 2 in South Australia
• 4 in Queensland
• 12 in NSW (11 in Sydney Eye Hospital and 1 in 

Prince of Wales)
• 7 in Victoria (Royal Victoria  

Eye and Ear Hospital)
• 2 in Western Australia.

CPD100%
Compliance
For 2016 (Jan – Dec) 

RCAT
A u d i t   m a d e   e a s y

246 users comprised of 237 Fellows, 8 Trainees 
and 1 CPD Customer, who have entered 10,444 
procedures, 6,055 with visual outcomes entered.

Number of S-IMG 
Applications Received 
(1 July 2016 – 30 June 
2017) in Australia

2016
4 - UK 
2 - India 
1 - Solvakia 
3 - Brazil

2017 
2 - Brazil 
1 - Jordon 
5 - India 
1 - Philippines 
1 - Singapore 
1 - South Africa 
1 - UK

TOTAL

22

Number of S-IMG 
Applications Received 
(1 July 2016 – 30 June 
2017) in New Zealand

2016
1 - Philippines 
1 - UK

2017 
1 - Egypt 
1 - UK

TOTAL

4

quality is evaluation and monitoring. For that reason, a 
comprehensive evaluation and monitoring strategy is in 
place, with the evaluation schedule running continuously 
throughout the year. This process gathers feedback and 
monitors everything from selection, including applicants’ 
experience of the selection process, to all aspects of the 

training program, from basic exams and basic rotations 
right through to the end of advanced exams and final year 
training experiences. The information gathered is analysed 
and feeds into the formation and review of our education 
and training services and supporting programs and policies.

124 
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STRATEGIC PRIORITY TWO: 
ADVOCACY AND AWARENESS
While educating and training ophthalmologists is a 
major part of improving eye care, it is also important that 
people better understand the eye  healthcare sector and 
that the political and policy environment is conducive 
to provision of the best possible eye care. This means 
that advocacy and awareness raising are essential to 
RANZCO’s mission. Strategic Priority Two reflects this, 
setting goals for the College to lead the policy debate 
as the trusted, authoritative source of information and 
research and to promote ophthalmology as a medical 
speciality, body of knowledge and career. This strategic 
priority also highlights the College’s commitment to 
improving eye care not just in Australia and New Zealand 
but internationally, highlighting our intention to help 
build capacity in ophthalmology in the Asia-Pacific 
region specifically.

RANZCO staff worked closely with the Board, 
committees, special interest groups and individual 
Fellows to work towards achieving these aims. From 
a policy perspective, the policy team facilitated and 
supported the work of a number of committees to 
develop and disseminate position on various issues.

POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
RANZCO worked with key regulatory bodies, 
government stakeholders and non-governmental 
bodies to feed into policy development, often through 
consultations and calls for evidence. RANZCO staff and 
Fellows also engaged directly with these organisations 
and peak bodies by attending policy development 
meetings and by serving on their policy committees.

The RANZCO Therapeutics Committee led engagement 
with key regulatory bodies on matters related to 
therapeutics and medical devices, including developing 
policy submissions to feed into policy development 
by the Therapeutics Good Administration (TGA), the 
Department of Health’s Drug Utilisation Sub-Committee 
(DUSC), the National Blood Authority, and the 
Pharmaceutical Benefits Scheme’s (PBS’s) Pharmaceutical 
Benefits Advisory Committee (PBAC).

Another important policy stakeholder for RANZCO 
is the Medicare Benefits Schedule (MBS), with the 
College’s Medicare Advisory Committee leading on 
matters relating to ophthalmology MBS item numbers 
and in preparation for the upcoming MBS Review 
Ophthalmology Clinical Committee, which is expected 
to be established in the 2017-2018 financial year. Again, 
a key part of this engagement is to help shape relevant 
MBS policy development and provide expert opinion 
with assistance from RANZCO’s Special Interest Groups to 
inform greater understanding of procedures. 

Over the 2016-2017 year, the Medicare Advisory 
Committee made submissions to MBS and the 
Department of Health on matters including appropriate 
use of MBS items; proposed changes to existing 
ophthalmology-related MBS items; and listing of new 
items, such as OCT and diabetic retinopathy screening 
for general practitioners, which included submissions 
to the Medical Services Advisory Committee (MSAC) in 
support of applications for new ophthalmology-related 
MBS items.

The Medicare Advisory Committee also worked closely 
with RANZCO’s policy and communications teams to 
ensure that Fellows were kept updated on MBS issues 
and advice about MBS item numbers.

In New Zealand, the RANZCO New Zealand Branch, 
supported by a Branch Support Officer, engaged directly 
with the Department of Health and relevant public 
health bodies on matters relating to medical benefits, 
access to care and health funding.

The work undertaken by the Workforce Committee 
underpins the policy and program development across 
the organisation, feeding into decisions about trainee 
selection, Indigenous eye health and College strategy, 
among others.

This year the Workforce Committee developed and 
launched the College’s latest workforce survey, with 
results being analysed to feed into the next stages of 
RANZCO’s work to deliver on the objectives of the 2017-
2020 strategic plan. Results from the workforce survey 
will be made available to Fellows later in 2017. 

In addition, the Workforce Committee led RANZCO’s 
discussions with the Workforce Regulatory Branch of 
the Australian Department of Health to develop the 
Ophthalmology Report looking at strategies to plan for 
and address current and future workforce requirements. 
The Committee also refined the Australian Area of Need 
policy and one Area of Need application was processed. 
In New Zealand, the Committee launched discussions 
to develop a process for ensuring that RANZCO trained 
Fellows are informed of employment opportunities.

The Workforce Committee also continued its 
collaboration with the Australian National University 
regarding the mapping of the Australian and New 
Zealand ophthalmology workforce and made the 
Health Insights tool available to Fellows on the RANZCO 
website.

Finally, the Workforce Committee informed state 
based activities on matters of maldistribution and 
better coordination of resources, particularly through 
discussions with state health departments in Queensland 
and Western Australia. 
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Maldistribution and coordination of resources have been 
key issues for the Indigenous Committee over the year, 
with the Committee contributing to the Vision 2020 ATSIC 
Eye Health consortium recommendations relating to 
closing the gap in Indigenous eye health. The Committee 
also looked at issues around the implementation of the 
new Medicare item number for diabetic retinopathy 
screening and the coordination and management 
required especially regarding remote settings, feeding 
into the College’s engagement with government and 
ministerial stakeholders. 

The Indigenous Committee also contributed to the 
production of educational resources demonstrating 
how ophthalmologists can treat Indigenous patients in 
a culturally respectful and, in consultation with various 
relevant New Zealand stakeholders, wrote a Maori Eye 
health strategy to address eye health inequalities in the 
Maori population.

ADVOCACY AND ENGAGEMENT
The College’s policy creation activities were supported 
throughout the year with robust advocacy campaigns and 
stakeholder engagement at both state and federal level. 
This activity was supported by the Board, branches and 
staff and included meetings with federal and statement 
ministers, departmental meetings, political awareness 
raising events and briefings for parliamentarians. Notable 
results through this activity included the Australian Health 
Minister committing to a fast tracking of the review for 
a new MIGS MBS item number and the introduction of 
an interim MBS item number for urgent cases. In New 
Zealand, a comprehensive advocacy campaign, supported 
by public awareness raising through media activity, 
resulted in funding commitments from government to 
attempt to address waiting list backlogs in the short term 
and ongoing engagement with the Ministry of Health to 
develop longer term solutions.

The Public Health Committee undertook advocacy 
activity to raise awareness of eye disease and help address 
preventable vision loss and blindness. A key focus was a 
call for increased screening and earlier and more equitable 
access to treatment for diabetic retinopathy. 

Media activity was used to support much of RANZCO’s 
policy and advocacy work, raising awareness of key issues, 
such as the New Zealand ophthalmology waiting list crisis, 
and highlighting to ministers and government the level 
of public interest in the issues. Media engagement also 
supported the launch and promotion of RANZCO’s referral 
pathways for glaucoma, AMD and diabetic retinopathy, 
helping to build awareness among optometrists and GPs, 
as well as government and departmental stakeholders.

AWARENESS RAISING
Public awareness of the role of ophthalmologists and 
the importance of eye health care was raised through 
media engagement. Some notable public awareness 
raising stories included the impact on a child’s eye sight 

of vitamin A deficiency and the importance of protecting 
children’s eyes from the sun, both of which got 
widespread Australian and New Zealand news coverage 
while also achieving international coverage in Asia, 
Europe and the US. Much of this work was supported 
by Dr Diane Semmonds and Dr Nitin Verma, as advisers 
to the RANZCO communications team, and Professor 
Stephanie Watson, as chair of the RANZCO Public Health 
Committee. 

The Public Health Committee completed a three-part 
series for Eye2Eye on models of collaborative care for 
diabetic eye disease. In addition, with their focus for 
the year on raising public awareness of issues relating 
to paediatric ophthalmology, the Committee worked 
closely with the communication and policy team to 
develop case studies and media articles around these 
issues. 

Building RANZCO’s online profile through social media 
activity, including Facebook, Twitter and LinkedIn, also 
allowed the College to communicate directly with both the 
public and interested parties in the wider eye health care 
sector. A strategic approach to social media activity allowed 
the College to maximise the impact of advocacy and public 
awareness raising activity, drive traffic to the RANZCO 
website and support the activity of other organisations. 
Social media was also used as a significant information and 
awareness raising resource throughout the RANZCO Annual 
Congress.

Promoting RANZCO’s profile as an expert voice in the 
ophthalmology sector and in ophthalmic sciences, RANZCO 
has two publications that come out through the year, our 
quarterly member magazine, Eye2Eye, and our scientific 
journal Clinical and Experimental Ophthalmology (CEO). 

Eye2Eye continued to raise awareness of key issues affecting 
ophthalmologists and their patients, including feature 
article exploring issues such as dyslexia and the regional 
ophthalmology workforce. In addition, Eye2Eye provided a 
platform to share information and idea with our members, 
with the Diversity and Inclusion Committee in particular 
feeding in a range of articles over the year to promote a 
culture diversity and inclusion within the College. 

CEO continued to promote the scientific credentials of 
RANZCO, our Fellows and our international colleagues. 
New manuscript submissions to the journal remained high 
over the year with an average of 96 month (compared to 
100 per month last year). Overall, while CEO continues to 
publish 47 percent Australian and New Zealand papers  
(40 percent Australian, 7 percent New Zealand), submissions 
were received from a record 56 countries, reflecting the 
international recognition that the journal is gaining. With so 
many submissions, the editors are able to choose only the 
best to feature in the journal, with 13 percent of submissions 
being accepted.

In September 2016, CEO joined Publons so that reviewers 
can automatically track, verify and receive credit for their 
reviews.
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February 2017, a CEO special issue was published on 
‘Systemic Disease and the Eye’. The issue featured eight 
invited review articles and was made available as free 
content to maximise readership.

CEO ended the year on a high when reviewed impact 
factor scores were published, with CEO rising from 16th  

in the world to 13th.

INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT
From an international perspective, the International 
Development Committee has been active at the global 
level advocating for capacity building of ophthalmology 
training programs and continuing professional 
development of ophthalmologists in low resource 
settings, with members participating in International 
Agency for the Prevention of Blindness (IAPB) 
committees informing policy. The Committee also 
responded to a consultation to inform the development 
of Australian Foreign Policy by submitting a RANZCO 
position statement calling for continued investment 
in eye health to help alleviate poverty and contribute 
towards sound community and regional development, 
while further establishing Australia as a regional and 
global leader in eye health development. RANZCO 
advocated in particular that Australia focus its foreign 
policy investment in the health-related areas:
• education and training
• workforce development; and:
• building professional networks.

The Committee also continued RANZCO’s International 
Scholarship Program, with four ophthalmologists 
awarded the RANZCO International Scholarship 
to attend the College Annual Scientific Congress 
in Melbourne and present at the International 
Development Workshop. The workshop, which was 
entitled Advocacy: influencing change and eye health 
sector development and was co-hosted by RANZCO 
and Vision 2020 Australia, explored how advocacy has 
been used in different countries to influence change or 
achieve improvement in the quality and reach of eye 
health services.

RANZCO also hosts a Pacific Links Steering Committee 
to oversee the development of RANZCO-PacEYES 
and RANZCO-PEI/FHFNZ relationships (Pacific Links 
program). 

The International Development Committee, 
supported by a large number of RANZCO Fellows who 
volunteered and dedicated a huge amount of their 
time, conducted visits to countries in the Asia-Pacific 
region as part of our capacity building exercises. This 
included teaching visits to the Pacific Eye Institute 
(PEI) in Fiji and the Regional Eye Centre (REC) in the 
Solomon Islands; visits to Papua New Guinea to identify 
training capacity needs, after which RANZCO led the 
ophthalmology curriculum review in collaboration 
with the University of Papua New Guinea, and to 
contribute to an HR workshop; visits in Cambodia to 

International development activities: 
key learnings
Through our international development 
projects, RANZCO seeks to deliver meaningful 
support that helps to improve eye health 
outcomes in the Asia-Pacific Region. 
Assessment and analysis of these activities 
allows us develop the service that we provide 
and maximise the impact of our work.

Through this, RANZCO has been able to 
identify the importance of meaningful local 
stakeholder engagement to successful 
implementation of programs and we 
have been able to build this in to program 
development and implementation. 

 In addition, curriculum review learnings from 
the projects in Fiji and Cambodia fed into 
the formation and process of the Papua New 
Guinea review.

support the ophthalmologist examination process, 
participate in the Cambodia Eye Health forum and feed 
into the ophthalmology residency training discussions. 
RANZCO staff also participated in the APAO leadership 
development program in Ulan Bator, Mongolia and 
attended 10GA IAPB meeting hosting in South Africa to 
take part in the poster exhibition.
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STRATEGIC PRIORITY THREE: 
MEMBER ENGAGEMENT
As a member-based organisation, RANZCO’s projects and activities represent, support and foster the interest of our 
members and build engagement, ownership and collegiality among them. 

ANNUAL SCIENTIFIC CONGRESS

Congress Chairs
Men: 55
Women: 19

Courses & Symposia 
abstracts submitted
Total: 44 
Male submissions: 30 
Female submissions: 14 

Courses & Symposia 
included in the program
Total: 24 
Male submissions: 18 
Female submissions: 6

Invited Speakers
Total: 9
Men: 7
Women: 2

INVITED SPEAKERS
NAMED LECTURES
Council Lecture 
Prof Gerard Sutton, Australia
Sir Norman Gregg Lecture 
Prof Denis Wakefield AO, Australia
Ida Mann Lecture  
Prof Maarten P. Mourits, Netherlands
Hollows Lecture 
Dr James Muecke AM, Australia

UPDATE LECTURES
Glaucoma Update Lecture 
Prof Keith Martin, UK
Cataract Update Lecture 
Prof Boris Malyugin, Russia
Refractive Update Lecture 
Dr David Hardten, USA
Retina Update Lecture  
Prof Ursula Schmidt-Erfurth, Austria
Neuro-Ophthalmology Update Lecture 
Dr Fiona Costello, Canada

RANZCO’s Annual Scientific Congress continues to be the 
leading medical eye care event in the region. Our 48th 
Annual Scientific Congress, held in Melbourne from 19-23 
November 2016, attracted more than 1500 delegates, 
sponsors and exhibitors from Australia, New Zealand and 
further afield.

The Scientific Program, organised by the College’s 
Scientific Program Committee, covered nine invited local 
and international speakers, 24 courses and symposia, and 

more than 200 rapid fire presentations, posters and films. 

The Local Organising Committee was led by Congress 
Co-Convenors Drs Daniel Chiu and Xavier Fagan and the 
Scientific Program Committee was led by Professor Helen 
Danesh-Meyer. During the year, the Scientific Program 
Committee continued to refine the format for the 
Congress to address a wider array of topics pertinent to 
ophthalmology, including non-scientific meetings as well 
as workshops for optometrists and general practitioners.
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AWARDS
During the reporting period, a number of College 
members and ophthalmic colleagues gained recognition 
for their work on behalf of the College, for medicine, 
ophthalmology and for their work in communities in 
Australia, New Zealand and overseas. 

QUEEN’S BIRTHDAY HONOURS
Dr Peter Charles Heiner was made a Member (AM) 
in the General Division of the Order of Australia for 
significant service to medicine as an ophthalmologist, 
to medical education and eye health research and to 
professional organisations.

COLLEGE AWARDS
COLLEGE MEDAL
Professor Minas Coroneo AO was awarded the College 
Medal in recognition for his service to the College and his 
dedication to the ophthalmic profession for many years.

HONORARY FELLOWSHIP
Professor Mark Radford was awarded RANZCO 
Honorary Fellowship for his commitment and service 
to the College over many years, benefiting both the 
ophthalmic profession and community.

THE FILIPIC GREER MEDAL
Awarded to Dr Nicholas Andrew and Dr Kate Leahy for 
overall excellence in the RANZCO Ophthalmic Pathology 
examination.

THE KG HOWSAM MEDAL
Awarded to Dr David Gunn for overall excellence in the 
RANZCO Advanced Clinical Examination.

THE CEDRIC COHEN MEDAL
Awarded to Dr Emil Kurniawan for overall excellence in 
the Ophthalmic Sciences examinations.

TRAINERS OF EXCELLENCE
The following trainers were nominated by trainees for 
exemplifying excellence in planning, communication, 
assessment and evidence-based professional practice.

• Dr Kimberley Tan (Prince of Wales Network)

• Dr Yves Kerdraon (Sydney Eye Network)

• A/Prof Anne Brooks (Victoria Network)

• Dr Tim Henderson (South Australia Network)

• Dr Dimitri Yellachich (Western Australia Network)

• Prof Geoffrey Lam (Western Australia Network)

• Dr Stephen Ohlrich (Queensland Network)

• Dr David Squirrell (New Zealand Network)

AUSTRALIA DAY 2017 AWARDS 
Dr Noel Alpins AM For significant service to 
ophthalmology, particularly to the development 
of innovative refractive surgery techniques, and to 
professional associations.

CONGRESS PRIZE WINNERS
BEST PAPER PRIZE
The Gerard Crock Trophy for best paper presentation 
from a senior ophthalmologist.
Prof Jamie Craig 

The John Parr Trophy for best paper presentation 
from a junior doctor.
Dr Elisabeth De Smit

BEST POSTER PRIZE
Best Overall Poster
‘Dark-adapted chromatic (two-colour) perimetry in age-
related macular degeneration’ by A/Prof Chi Luu 

FILM FESTIVAL PRIZES
Best Community Ophthalmology Film
‘Kuru Palya Good Eyes’ by Ms Emily O’Kearney 

Best Surgical Technique Film
‘Descemet Membrane Endothelial Keratoplasty: An 
Experiment with Different Techniques’ by Dr Elaine 
Chong

Best Overall Film
‘A Novel Method for Rapid Production of Basic Diagnostic 
Ophthalmic Equipment’ by Dr Shong Min Voon

AUDIT PRIZE
Awarded to Dr Aaron Ng

SCHOLARSHIPS
ALLERGAN/RANZCO SCHOLARSHIP
Dr Justin Sherwin, Glaucoma Fellowship at Oxford 
University Hospital.

Dr Amy Pai, Fellowship at Moorfields Eye Hospital in 
Medical Retina, Genetics and Uveitis.

BAYER/RANZCO SCHOLARSHIP
Dr Nathan Kerr, Glaucoma Surgical Trials Fellowship at 
Moorfields Eye Hospital.

Dr Vivek Pandya, Vitreoretinal Surgery Fellowship at the 
University of British Columbia, Vancouver.

ABBOTT/RANZCO SCHOLARSHIP
Dr Alex Hewitt, position of study at the 
Electrophysiology Laboratory at the Department 
of Optometry and Vision Sciences, the University of 
Melbourne.
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Dr Garry Brian AM For significant service to 
ophthalmology, and to the provision of eye health care 
programs in rural and remote communities.

Dr Iain Dunlop AM For significant service to 
ophthalmology, particularly through executive roles with 
professional medical organisations, and as a practitioner

A/Prof Geoffrey Painter AM For significant service 
to medicine in the field of ophthalmology, and to 
international relations, particularly to eye health in Asia 
and the Pacific.

Dr Keith Zabell OAM For service to medicine, 
particularly to ophthalmology.

Prof Keryn Anne Williams (not a Fellow) For eminent 
service to medical science in the field of ophthalmology 
through the research and development of corneal 
transplantation, as an academic and mentor, and as a 
supporter of young women scientists.

QUEEN’S BIRTHDAY 2017 
AWARDS
Dr Catherine Mary Green AO For distinguished service 
to ophthalmology as a clinician, through executive roles 
with national and international professional groups, to 
research and education, and to eye health care programs 
in the Asia Pacific.

Dr Roger Thomas Welch OAM For service to 
ophthalmology, for his hard work in outback 
communities, working out of a surgical bus to deliver 
ophthalmic care to those most in need. He is also the 
founder of the state-of-the-art Vision Centre Day Surgery 
on the Gold Coast.

GROUP REPORTS
The RANZCO groups have been formed to provide 
a platform to bring ideas and experience together, 
representing Fellows with specific interests 
throughout various stages of their career. These 
groups currently include the Younger Fellows 
Advisory Group, the Practice Managers’ Group, 
Women in Ophthalmology and the Senior and 
Retired Fellows Group. Each have representatives 
who attend the Branch Meetings across Australia 
and New Zealand to shed light on the collective 
view and focus of the group. The group provide 
support and network opportunities for their 
embers, including through seminars and social 
events at the RANZCO Annual Scientific Congress. 

The Younger Fellows Advisory Group brings 
together and represents the interests of Fellows 
who are at the beginning of their ophthalmology 
careers. At the 2016 Melbourne Congress the 
Younger Fellows Course was part of the main 
program and the Group had strong representation 
in other courses and symposia. The Younger 
Fellows Dinner at Congress was also a great 
platform for younger Fellows to exchange ideas 
and gain insight into peers’ experiences. 

The Senior and Retired Fellows Group represents 
the views of RANZCO’s senior and retired Fellows 
and contributes their experience and expertise 
to the development of RANZCO services and 
resources. At the 2016 Congress in Melbourne a 
dedicated space was set up next to the RANZCO 
museum to provide an opportunity for senior 
and retired Fellows to catch up with friends and 
colleagues. The Senior and Retired Fellows’ dinner 
was a great success with over 70 Fellows and their 
partners attending. 

The Women in Ophthalmology Group represents 
the interests of female ophthalmologists. This 
year the group welcomes Dr Faye Walker and 
Dr Genevieve Oliver as Co-Chairs appointed early 
in January 2017. in January the group held their 
inaugural meeting, attracting many new members 
to the Group. The Group conducted a member 
survey to gather important information to feed 
into RANZCO’s work. 

The Practice Managers’ Group provides targeted 
resources for RANZCO’s practice manager 
members, and runs the Practice Managers’ Annual 
Conference, run alongside the RANZCO’s Annual 
Congress. This year, two new Co-Chairs, Lucy 
Peters and Kharissa Cai, were appointed and 
group welcomed new members from Victoria 
and Western Australia – Lara Reindl and Gail 
Drennan respectively – and Judith Parnell from 
New Zealand.

RANZCO museum collection 2016

RANZCO Practice Managers’ Committee 2016
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BRANCHES
NEW SOUTH WALES
The NSW branch hosted its Annual Scientific Meeting 
in conjunction with the International Society of Ocular 
Oncology (ISOO) at the new International Convention 
Centre at Darling Harbour from 24 to 25 March 2017. 
The event was well attended, bringing together over 
450 delegates from across the state and the broader 
region to discuss the latest in ocular oncology and 
oculoplastic surgery. 

As convenor of RANZCO’s NSW Branch Meeting, 
Dr Gina Kourt organised a comprehensive and 
informative scientific program where Fellows 
and trainees had the opportunity to learn from 
internationally renowned speakers as well as local 
luminaries who covered a range of topics pertinent 
to oncology and oculoplastic surgery. As part of 
RANZCO’s collaborative approach to the delivery of 
eye health care services, the NSW Branch also hosted 
an educational symposium for General Practitioners 
(GPs) during the meeting. The session aimed to 
enhance the ophthalmic knowledge of GPs and 
improve patient outcomes in general practice. 

On the advocacy front, the NSW Branch Committee 
has been busy working on several initiatives to 
increase public awareness about eye health issues 
such as the importance of screening for diabetic 
retinopathy, raising awareness about the dangers 
associated with the practice of eye ball tattooing and 
reducing waiting times for cataract surgery across 
NSW. 

In early 2017, NSW Branch Committee members met 
with key NSW Members of Parliament (MPs), including 
the NSW Shadow Minister for Health, Walt Secord, and 
the NSW Minister for Health, Brad Hazzard, to discuss 
the issue of cataract surgery waiting times and review 
policy on eye ball tattooing in NSW.

During the 2016/17 financial year, reducing cataract 
waiting times across NSW has been high on the 
agenda for the NSW Branch. The Committee is 
currently reviewing and formulating a response to the 
Agency for Clinical Innovation’s report on Cataract 
Surgery Utilisation Benchmarking in NSW, released in 
late 2016. 

To mark World Diabetes Day on 11 November 2016, 
the NSW Branch also held a successful event at 
NSW Parliament to raise awareness about diabetic 
retinopathy.

The NSW Branch continues to participate in the AMA 
NSW and ASMOF Careers Expo with the most recent 
expo being held in May 2017. The event was well 
attended by students from all medical disciplines and 
the NSW Branch again played a key role in promoting 
the College and ophthalmology as a profession, with 
many students showing interest in gaining further 
experience in ophthalmology. 

Drs Gina Kourt and Michael Giblin conveners of the 
combined NSW RANZCO and ISOO meeting. 

Drs Di Semmonds, Nisha Sachdev and Luke Northey at the 
RANZCO stand at the Careers Expo. 

Drs Andrew Chang, John Downie, Mr Scott Dunn (Zeiss), 
Emma Carr (RANZCO) at Diabetes Day NSW Parliament 
House.
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QUEENSLAND 
The 2016 Queensland Branch Annual Scientific Meeting 
was held on the Gold Coast from 29 to 30 July 2016 
and was considered a huge success. The program 
was designed with a focus on ocular oncology and 
oculoplastics and was well received by all those in 
attendance. Local speakers and international guest 
speakers provided insights into developments in eye 
care with guest speakers Professor Sarah Coupland, Dr 
Heinrich Heimann and Mr Simon Woodruff presenting 
engaging, informative and practical papers on oncology 
and eyelid surgery. 

During the 2016-17 financial year, the Queensland 
Branch has updated its Terms of Reference and has 
been working hard to address workforce needs. The 
Branch has been working with the College preparing 
submissions and arranging meetings with State and 
Federal Governments to address future needs for eye care 
in Queensland. Discussions have been based on several 
factors including projected calculations on the number of 
Ophthalmologists required in the future; the shifting role 
of optometry; distribution of ophthalmologists across the 
state; and the effect of SIMGs on future projections.

The Queensland Branch Committee has awarded four 
exclusive Topham Scholarships. Each scholarship is worth 
$15,000 and aims to encourage and assist final year 
registrars travelling overseas to undertake further studies 
and broaden their knowledge. The four recipients were:

• Dr Brett Drury, Glaucoma Fellowship at Manchester 
Royal Eye Hospital

• Dr David Gunn, Corneal Fellowship at Bristol Eye 
Hospital

• Dr Lindsay McGrath, Ocular Oncology and 
Oculoplastics Fellowship

• Dr Cameron McLintock, Corneal Fellowship at the 
Queen Victoria Hospital

TASMANIA 
The Tasmania Branch welcomed over 70 attendees its 
2017 Annual Scientific Branch Meeting which was held at 
the Hobart Function and Conference Centre from 10 to 
11 June. 

The theme for this year’s meeting was Uveitis Unplugged: 
Simplifying A Complex Problem with attendees travelling 
from as far as Canada to listen to a series of informative 
lectures from leading experts Professors Peter McCluskey 
and Tony Hall.

The meeting gave delegates the opportunity to hear 
from colleagues in dynamic challenging cases and audit 
sessions. Topics included Patient reported outcomes of 
the Tecnis Symfony extended depth of focus IOL, Ocular 
Experience from Manchester – the Syphilis Capital of 
Europe and Efficacy and dynamics of self-targeting 
CRISPR/Cas constructs in the retina.

The scientific program was complemented by several 
social events that took place during the meeting. 

Attendees were honoured to be hosted by Her Excellency 
Professor the Honourable Kate Warner, AC, Governor of 
Tasmania at a private welcome function on the Friday 
evening, whilst the meeting dinner was regarded as 
a highlight for all who attended. A Younger Fellows 
Networking event was also hosted during the meeting 
which proved to be a great networking opportunity for 
Tasmania’s younger Fellows. 

In terms of its advocacy work, the Tasmania Branch 
has been engaged in ongoing discussions with state 
government regarding the restructure of health services 
in Tasmania. So far, the branch has received a positive 
response from the state government with Dr Kristin Bell 
leading discussions as head of the liaison group. 

SOUTH AUSTRALIA
The South Australia Branch meeting was held in April 
at the Sanctuary, Adelaide Zoo. The focus was Medical 
Retina – current practice and future trends. The meeting 
was well attended, with over 80 delegates, and A/Prof 
Alex Harper and Dr Fred Chen provided a wonderful 
overview of current issues, supported by high quality 
local speakers. The real highlight of the program was 
the paediatric session, focussing on Retinopathy of 
Prematurity. Finally, the Conference Dinner was held at 
the iconic Jolley’s Boathouse, which provided a wonderful 
venue for a night of good food, wine and conviviality.

There are a number of ongoing issues in South Australia 
that the Branch is actively monitoring and engaging with, 
in particular the imminent opening of the new Royal 
Adelaide Hospital, which has a significant reduction in 
outpatient capacity. 

The closure of the Repatriation Hospital in October is 
still creating uncertainty about how to cater for the tens 
of thousands of outpatient attendances and hundreds 
of surgical procedures within the already at capacity 
Flinders Medical Centre and other public facilities. The 
promised stand-alone public Eye Centre in the Adelaide 
CBD is yet to be realised, despite two years of ongoing 
negotiations with the state government and SA Health. 
As well as the impact on patients, these changes have 
negatives implications for training, accreditation and 
research. The SA Branch continues to monitor this 
situation, apply pressure on decision makers and raise 
awareness of the issue with the wider community. 
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VICTORIA
The Victoria Branch’s activities have been guided by the 
branch objectives that were adopted in 2016. These 
objectives have been successful in guiding support and 
advocacy for Victorian ophthalmology and eye health. 
Over the year, the Branch has engaged with Victorian 
State Health Department to advocate on behalf of 
the profession and our patients. This included making 
submissions to the Department’s review of regulation of 
ophthalmic lasers in Victoria, as well as recommending 
that ophthalmic tattooing and piercing is only able to be 
performed by an ophthalmologist for medical purposes, 
rather than by cosmetic clinics. The Branch also provided 
financial scholarships to three Victorian registrar trainees 
to participate in Indigenous eye care in remote Australian 
locations with the Lions Outback Vision Van.

The Royal Victorian Eye and Ear Hospital redevelopment 
continues, with the bulk of the hospital services still being 
located at the old Peter MacCallum Cancer Institute site, 
with the exception of the Emergency Department. It is 
anticipated the hospital will be finished in 2019.

The revision of state branch financial structure has 
been taken forward to comply with federal RANZCO 
requirements for accounting and auditing. 

Finally, the Victoria Branch annual scientific meeting 
took place at the Woodward Centre of the University of 
Melbourne on 4th March 2017. The meeting featured a 
number of eminent speakers including Prof Glen Gole 
from the Brisbane Children’s Hospital and Prof Jonathan 
Crowston from the Centre for Eye Research Australia as 
well as A/Prof Peter Gehlbach and A/Prof Ingrid Zimmer 
Galler, both from the Wilmer Eye Institute of Johns Hopkins 
University. Next year’s Victoria Branch meeting will be held 
in the Woodward Centre at the University of Melbourne on 
3 March 2018.

WESTERN AUSTRALIA
Over the last few months the WA Branch engaged in several 
initiatives to improve access to eye care services for Western 
Australians and address capacity issues across Perth 
hospitals. To further this, WA Branch Committee members 
have been working closely with key parliamentarians 
to discuss issues relating to workforce planning and 
distribution across the state and better co-ordinating the 
provision of care across the state. 

In June 2017, WA Branch Chair, Dr Nigel Morlet, along with 
Dr Angus Turner met with the WA Deputy Premier and 
Minister for Health, Roger Cook, where a proposal to form a 
single state-wide ophthalmology service within WA Health 
was discussed. This would be a similar arrangement as with 
the radiology and pathology services. The need for more 
services in the North West with a proposal for two full time 
ophthalmologists was also discussed. 

The recommendations were well received by Minister 
Cook who encouraged the WA Branch to put forward its 
recommendations to the Department of Health as part of a 
contribution to the Sustainable Health Review.

Six of the Branch Executive participated in a 
communications workshop. The College kindly provided 
Emma Carr, assisted by Josie Faunce, who put on an 
excellent session. Those participating found it an extremely 
practical and useful exercise and it should help with 
promoting our current advocacy efforts.

Jo Richards has launched the Collective Audit for this year 
and it can roll onto next year as a follow up as well. The 
audit looks at antibiotic use across a wide range of scenarios 
and is open to not just the Branch Fellows, but all Fellows 
of the College and will be part of two big sessions at the 
Congress in Perth in November.

NEW ZEALAND
The 2017 New Zealand Branch Annual Scientific Meeting 
was held on Friday 12 and Saturday 13 May 2017. It was 
the first branch meeting to be held in Waitangi, Northland 
which is the birthplace of the nation and is where the Treaty 
of Waitangi was signed in 1840.

Keynote speakers included Dr Ken Nischal (Paediatrics, 
USA), Professor Tien Wong (Medical Retina, Singapore), 
Professor Tim Sullivan (Oculoplastics, Australia), and 
Professor Marian Macsai (Cornea, USA). In the opening 
session, Ken Nischal spoke about neonatal corneal 
opacification, followed by Marian Macsai who spoke on 
corneal transplantation and then Tim Sullivan provided an 
oculoplastic update. In the afternoon session Tien Wong 
gave an update on anti-VEGF treatment for age-related 
macular degeneration. All speakers stuck to the brief of 
providing practical, usable information while also giving 
updates on the latest advances in their respective fields. 

The last financial year has seen the New Zealand Branch 
actively engaged in patient advocacy to improve access 
ophthalmic care across the country. New Zealand’s public 
hospital eye departments are dealing with significant 
backlogs in follow-ups due to a growing, aging population, 
chronic diseases such as macular degeneration, glaucoma 
and diabetes, and of course the advent of anti-VEGF drugs. 
This culminated in a media report last year where it was 
revealed that a number of people in Southland had lost 
their sight because of significant delays in treatment. A 
RANZCO Advisory Group was formed in response to this 
and is engaging with the Ministry of Health to formulate 
workable solutions.

The Branch’s efforts resulted in the Ministry of Health 
recently forming a National Ophthalmology Service 
Improvement Expert Advisory Group. This group will be 
tasked with advising the Ministry on all matters of service 
planning. Stephen Ng has been elected as Clinical Leader of 
the group.

Over the last year, Health Workforce New Zealand has been 
changing its policy on funding of training positions. The 
Branch has written a submission expressing some of our 
concerns with these proposed changes.

In other branch developments, Dr Justin Mora being 
elected Censor-in-Chief at RANZCO in 2016 and  
Dr Stephen Ng stood down as Branch Chair after two 
years with Dr Brian Kent-Smith taking over the role.
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STRATEGIC PRIORITY FOUR: 
STANDARDS
Strategic Priority Four in the RANZCO Strategic Plan 
for 2017-2020 focusses on the College’s role in setting, 
monitoring and maintaining standards for the provision of 
the highest quality ophthalmology practice in Australia and 
New Zealand.

A core aspect of achieving this objective is ensuring that 
the College upholds AHPRA and MCNZ policies that are 
relevant to ophthalmology and service provision. This year 
this included implementing mandated changes to the CPD 
requirements of all RANZCO Fellows, with all practising 
ophthalmologists now required to complete full CPD points 
even if they practice only part-time. This change came into 
effect as of 1 January 2017.

Over the year, RANZCO also focussed on developing policies 
and processes for enhancing the skills of Fellows. This 
included the Professional Standards Committee’s work on 
the development and launch of the NUCLEUS Program, 
which is designed to assist Fellows with the overall quality 
improvement and preparation for practice accreditation. 
This comes ahead of the expected introduction by the 
Australian government of practice accreditation as a 
requirement for ophthalmologists. 

Ongoing review of RANZCO’s functions and processes 
has continued over the year, with the CPD Committee 
undertaking a full review of the CPD Handbook to ensure 
that there is an accessible and robust program offering for 
Fellows. This review is expected to be finalised early in the 
2017-2018 financial year.

To ensure that RANZCO develops clinical practice 
guidelines consistent with current best practice 
in Australia, New Zealand and internationally, the 
Clinical Standards Committee has focused on the 
development of a RANZCO Clinical Practice Guidelines 
Development Framework, which was launched in 
Jun 2017. The Framework was developed with input 
from other RANZCO committees, special interest 
groups and societies. This was completed alongside 
the Committee’s ongoing work to provide advice on 
clinical standards related matters, ensuring that RANZCO 
provides leadership in the area of clinical standards in 
ophthalmology.

Ensuring that ophthalmic research is not just high 
quality but also of the highest ethical standard is a 
key function of the College and the Human Rights 
and Ethics Committee reviews research applications 
to ensure this is the case. Alongside this, the 
Committee has made improvements to the methods 
of communication between RANZCO and the principal 
investigators of research proposals, and they began 
work on improving the templates for progress reports 
and final reports to cater for the two different research 
types (Low Negligible Risk / Human Research Ethics 

Application), rather than the generic form that is 
currently being used. 

RANZCO’s Leadership Development Program (LDP), 
supported by the Leadership Development Committee, 
helps to ensure high quality leaders in ophthalmology 
and within the College by providing training, support 
and networking events for Fellows. This year the 
Committee provided direction to RANZCO Fellows 
Anu Mathew, Clare Fraser, Jenny Danks, Jo Richards, 
Kenneth Chan, Mark Chiang, Shenton Chew and 
Simon Skalicky for their individual projects as part 
of the RANZCO LDP. The Committee also developed 
the RANZCO Leadership Development Program’s 
Masterclass, which was held in January 2017, and 
secured funding from Avant to provide two scholarships to 
successful LDP candidates. Funding was also secured for an 
inaugural RANZCO LDP alumni event to be hosted at the 
Annual Scientific Meeting in 2017.

Ensuring high standards in each area of ophthalmology, 
RANZCO’s special interest groups bring together 
ophthalmologists with a special interest in a particular 
condition or area of the eye. These special interest groups 
advise on policy relating to their special interest areas, 
review and disseminate research and information resources, 
and provide RANZCO with expert advice on relevant 
practice issues. Over the year, these groups have also fed 
into policy development, advocacy activities and media 
engagement, ensuring that the messages that RANZCO 
puts out represent the highest standards of practice in each 
specialist area. 

Finally, to ensure that all Fellows operate, in all aspects of 
their work, to the high standard expected of RANZCO’s 
Fellows, and to ensure that those standards are up-to-
date and clearly defined, the Code of Conduct Committee 
has been working with the CEO and the Board to review 
RANZCO’s Code of Conduct. This core RANZCO policy 
document is being redrafted and the final version is 
expected to be approved by the Board and published  
in 2017 – 2018.

NUCLEUS documents 
downloaded by 70 members.

1431 

R E C
77 Applications submitted to HREC for approval 

H
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STRATEGIC PRIORITY FIVE: 
COLLEGE ACTIVITIES
A key priority over the past financial year for RANZCO was 
ensuring that we have in place policies and programs 
that foster diversity, equity and inclusiveness in College 
activities and committees. A major development in this 
area was the establishment of the Diversity and Inclusion 
Committee in July 2016.

Since its establishment, the Committee has made great 
progress in furthering the aims of diversity and inclusion 
principles through a number of initiatives. As a crucial 
part of the College’s vision, values and strategy, the 
Diversity and Inclusion Committee has committed to 
increasing female representation on RANZCO committees 
and in leadership roles in order to better reflect the 
demographics of the training program and society more 
broadly. Having a diverse membership ensures that the 
College has a strategic advantage that comes from having 
a wide variety of perspectives in its decision making, 
problem solving, policy development and service delivery. 

In line with its commitment to diversity and inclusion 
principles, RANZCO has also joined the Diversity Council of 
Australia, Diversity Works NZ and NSW Equal Employment 
Opportunity Practitioners' Association (NEEOPA), allowing 
the College and its members to access important tools 
and resources across the diversity and inclusion spectrum. 
The Committee has also engaged the CPD Committee 
to ensure Senior and Retired Fellows are being fully 
represented and supported through the College. 

RANZCO staff and members have also actively engaged in 
diversity and inclusion events over the 2016/17 financial 
year. In November 2016, past RANZCO’s President Brad 
Horsburgh, RANZCO’s Vice President Di Semmonds and 
General Manager of Membership Services, Alex Arancibia 
attended the annual Diversity Council of Australia debate 
which focussed on the importance of engaging men in 
achieving gender equality in the workplace.

In March 2017, RANZCO’s Vice President, Dr Di Semmonds, 
and the Chair of the RANZCO Younger Fellows Advisory 
Group, Dr Nisha Sachdev, attended the All About Women 
to celebrate International Women’s Day and to discuss and 
learn about women, feminism, equality and diversity.

In other developments over the year, RANZCO introduced 
its Referral Pathways for Glaucoma Management, Age-
related Macular Degeneration (AMD) Management and 
Diabetic Retinopathy Management. The pathways have 
been developed with the input of both ophthalmologists 
and optometrists and they aim to provide a clear guide for 
referring patients to ophthalmologists. The development 
of these pathways demonstrate RANZCO’s commitment to 
working collaboratively with all optometrists and GPs to 
achieve the best possible eye health outcomes for people 
across Australia and New Zealand.

MUSEUM
One of the Museum highlights for the last financial year 
include presentations at the Victorian Branch meeting 
and Royal Australian College of Surgeons (RACS). In 
other developments, the Ida Mann Gullstrand slit lamp 
was restored and installed in the Ida Mann conference 
room at RANZCO and a poster was put up on her life as a 
permanent exhibition. 

Oral archives of seven prominent New Zealand 
ophthalmologists were also retrieved from Radio New 
Zealand and installed in the Memories section of the 
RANZCO Museum website.

The O’Day Collection of animal ocular histology was 
digitised by Monash University for access on the website. 
This is a rare and significant collection. Full size format 
is open access through Monash University Anatomy 
Department.

During the 48th Annual Scientific Congress in Melbourne, 
a number of Museum artefacts were on display. The 
history of perimetry, colour vision, management of 
foreign bodies and ophthalmic teaching were displayed.

Throughout the year, numerous donations of artefacts 
were gratefully received and catalogued.
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30 Trainees admitted to 
Fellowship through the 
VTP since 1 July 2016.  
14 female and 16 male

Branches joined 

12  New South Wales
1  New Zealand 
4  Queensland 
4  South Australia
1  Tasmania 
4  Victoria 
4  Overseas

FELLOWSHIP THROUGH THE VTP 

Ages at admission to Fellowship

1

31  32  33  34  35  36  37  38  39  40  41  42  43  44  45

2

3

4

5

8 S-IMGs admitted to Fellowship through the S-IMG 
pathway since 1 July 2016.

Ages at admission 
to Fellowship

Branches joined

Aboriginal

Aboriginal/ Torres Strait 
Islander Maori Fellows

Aboriginal/ Torres Strait 
Islander Maori Trainees

AboriginalMaori Maori

FELLOWSHIP THROUGH THE 
S-IMG

Victoria

Western 
Australia

South 
Australia

New South 
Wales

Overseas

34 36

38 39

41 42

MEMBERSHIP BREAKDOWN AT 
30 JUNE 2017 

4

4

4

4

1

12

FELLOWS FEMALE MALE TOTAL

Full Fellow 217 796 1013

Overseas 6 32 38

Y/Overseas 11 14 25

Part Timers 20 56 76

Retired 15 100 115

Honorary Fellows 3 14 17

TOTAL FELLOWS 269 998 1267

ASSOCIATES FEMALE MALE

Trainees 65 120

International 6 10

Ordinary 3 7

Orthoptics Associate Member 34 3

Orthoptics Assoc. Non-Member 2 3

Practice Managers 88 8

Temporary Training Registrar 1 3

TOTAL ASSOCIATES 199 154

1
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4 AFFILIATED
ORGANISATIONS

OPHTHALMIC RESEARCH INSTITUTE 
OF AUSTRALIA (ORIA)

During 2016, the 
ORIA received 
52 applications 
from Australian 
researchers for 
funding in 2017

All projects were 
peer reviewed 
by two external 
experts

The ORIA is 
supporting 11 
projects during 
the year.

The total amount 
provided for 
medical eye 
research by 
the ORIA and 
its supporters 
is a little under 
$800,000.

At the end of the 
2016/17 financial 
year, the ORIA 
received 
applications 
from 54 
research groups 
throughout 
Australia for 
assessment for 
funding in 2018.

$

ORIA/EYE SURGEONS’ FOUNDATION GRANT
Dr R Natoli, A/Prof R Essex & Prof J Provis
MicroRNA provide a new class of therapeutics for diseases such as 
Age-Related Macular Degeneration

At least two of the researchers have received large NHMRC funding based on the initial support received by 
the ORIA. The two projects are:

ORIA/G J WILLIAMS BEQUEST GRANT
Prof J Smith
ICAM-1 expression in retinal endothelial cells

The Ophthalmic Research Institute of Australia (ORIA) 
is RANZCO’s research arm, dedicated to promoting 
research into the nature and cause of eye disease and the 
prevention of blindness. 

Since ORIA was founded, they have distributed millions 
of dollars for research into all major eye diseases. ORIA 
makes annual research grants available which have 
been accumulated through donations as well as from 
their fund raising arm The Eye Surgeons’ Foundation. 
These grants have enabled many ophthalmologists 

and vision scientists, to enrich Australian medicine and 
surgery. Through their contribution to clinical practice, 
medical education and medical research, ORIA ultimately 
provides great benefit to Australian eye health.

The ORIA assists the Save Sight Society of New Zealand 
by incorporating their applications for funding into the 
ORIA’s assessment process. The process is conducted 
from April through to September.

Several publications and presentations have arisen out of 
this year’s research funding.
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The Eye Surgeons' Foundation is a not-for-profit eye 
health organisation which represents more than 900 
Australian and New Zealand ophthalmologists. The ESF 
funds ground-breaking research into many of the major 
causes of blindness and funds sustainable eye care 
programs in disadvantaged communities in Australia 
and internationally. ESF created the JulEYE awareness 
campaign to increase public knowledge about the 
importance of eye health. Their vision is to create a 
future where no one is blind and their mission is to lead 
efforts to preserve sight and provide resources to prevent 
avoidable blindness throughout Australasia. To achieve 
this, EFS works in partnership with leading eye specialists, 
medical professionals, industry representatives, the 
ophthalmic and allied health community, the public, 
business communities and government.

In April 2017, the Eye Surgeons’ Foundation appointed 
a new CEO, Lisa Cheng. Lisa has extensive experience 
in the not-for-profit sector through senior fundraising 
and executive roles and is well positioned to take the 
organisation into a new direction with a growing focus 
on fundraising. Lisa replaced Jacinta Spurrett who 
resigned from her role as CEO in September 2016.

During the 2016/17 financial year, the ESF has welcomed 
5 new Directors with diverse skills and experience and 
has implemented a new marketing strategy to rebrand 
and build greater engagement with consumer and 
industry markets. For its JulEYE campaign, the ESF has 
attracted over $6m in media exposure to raise awareness 
about the importance of eye health and the role of 
ophthalmologists.

EYE SURGEONS’ 
FOUNDATION

The research of Dr Ricardo Natoli at 
ANU Co-funded with the ORIA, has 
discovered a way that could dramatically 
slow down the degenerative process for 
patients with dry macular degeneration. 
With a team of collaborators including 
Dr Rohan Essex FRANZCO (ANU Medical 
School, JCSMR) and Professor Jan Provis 
(ANU Medical School, JCSMR), Dr Natoli 
has been exploring the master regulars 
of the cells in the retina – the MicroRNA 
(miRNA). This research has revealed 
that it may be possible to slow down 
the degeneration process enough for 
patients to avoid experiencing vision 
loss altogether. 

$2,250,150  
international projects granted 

$339,252  
funds to domestic projects and research
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The Save Sight Society was originally formed by 
a group of New Zealand Ophthalmologists who 
endeavoured to improve eye health in New Zealand. 
Their aim is to raise public awareness surrounding 
the causes of blindness. The Save Sight Society 
helps to encourage early detections of preventable 
blindness in children, prevent eye injuries and 
promote research into the causes of eye diseases 
and their treatment. The Save Sight Society has 
set up a research fund with grants made to New 
Zealanders working in the field of eye research 
with an emphasis on diseases that are particularly 
relevant in New Zealand. The Save Sight Society aims 
to ensure that advances in eye treatments become 
available to all who are likely to benefit, and that 
people with incurable eye diseases have access to 
support services throughout New Zealand.

The Save Sight Society Annual conference was held 
on 26th August 2016 at the Trinity Wharf in Tauranga. 
The theme of the meeting was Ophthalmology 
Updates: The New Normal. The conference was very 
well attended and was a huge success. Planning is 
currently under way for the 2017 Save Sight Society 
Annual Conference which will be held in Auckland. 

Key activities during the 2016/17 financial year:
• The Save Sight Society was donated a large 

collection of eye images from Emeritus 
Professor John Parr. Associate Professor Bruce 
Hadden has selected the best 350 images 
from this collection, which will be labelled and 
branded as the ‘John Parr Image Collection.’

• The website for Save Sight Society has 
been revamped and updated with latest 
information.

Grants funded in 2016/2017:
• Dr Andrea Vincent – Functional characterisation 

of a PDE6B founder mutation in the NZ Maori 
population causing inherited retinal disease 
-$26,322 

• Dr Mohammed Ziaie – Collagen lenticule onlay 
assisted corneal collagen cross linking – partially 
funded for $20,000

• Dr Verity Oliver – Keratoconus: the environment 
and our genes: Is epigenetics the missing link? – 
partially funded for $20,000

• The Heather Mackintosh Junior Research Grant 
was awarded to Sarah Swanevelder to travel to 
Seoul, to present at the Cornea Society Meeting 
- $1,960.

SAVE SIGHT 
SOCIETY

Ophthalmology New Zealand (ONZ) is an independent 
member organisation for ophthalmologists in New 
Zealand. ONZ works with RANZCO to advocate in areas that 
ophthalmologists are passionate about to provide better 
eye care for their patients throughout New Zealand. 

This year RANZCO campaigned alongside ONZ on the issue 
of extended waiting lists for follow up appointments in 
the District Health Boards via the Ministry of Health. Initial 
funding was forthcoming, however ongoing engagement 
to find a more complete, long term solution is to follow. 
RANZCO and ONZ will continue engaging closely with the 
government to ensure this matter is resolved going forward.

ONZ held the bi-annual Clinical Leaders Forum for the heads 
of all District Health Board Ophthalmology Units. In this 
year’s forum key activities discussed were:

• The extended wait times for follow up appointments
• General competency issues (including cultural)
• Bullying and Sexual Harassment
• Consent
• Triage
• A workshop was held into ARMD funding by Ernst & 

Young.

Feedback was strong for this meeting, with networking for 
clinical issues a highly regarded component. We intend to 
hold this meeting annually going forward.

The inaugural business workshop for members and non 
members was held at Pahia in May alongside the New 
Zealand Branch Annual Scientific Meeting. Commercial 
issues discussed in the meeting included items such as 
insurance, risk, accounting, strategic planning, and the 
Commerce Act. 

Representation at a recent meeting with Southern Cross 
(the NZ monopoly insurer), in regards to attaining funding 
for MIGs similar to that attained under the Medicare Rebate 
scheme. Discussion is under way on this funding, in that 
both SCHI and ONZ need to look at criteria for MIGS.

Future improvements - ONZ are currently working on 
a website, to allow members access to non- clinical NZ 
resources.

OPHTHALMOLOGY 
NEW ZEALAND 
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AUSTRALIAN SOCIETY OF 
OPHTHALMOLOGY (ASO)
The ASO enjoys a strong affiliation with RANZCO and the Australian Medical Association (AMA). The ASO is a 
membership organisation representing the commercial interests of ophthalmologists. 

ASO has worked closely with RANZCO on a campaign for the reinstatement of Medicare item 
number 42758 (for the implantation of MIGS), highlighting the negative impact introduction 
of interim item number 42705 is having - both on patient outcomes and on administrative 
processes. The campaign continues.

A key priority for the year has been working on building the strong relationship between 
ASO and RANZCO. During 2016/2017, ASO representatives have attended each of the 
RANZCO state branch meetings to update College members on ASO activities and keep 
abreast of all College business.

ASO has strengthened its representation of ophthalmologists living and working in Western 
Australia. In 2017, ASO welcomed Western Australian ophthalmologist Dr Tom Cunneen to 
the ASO Board of Directors.

Our engagement with the Federal Health Department has gone from strength to strength. 
Meetings with Department representatives in Canberra are now a regular occurrence and 
communication exchanges are as frequent as once-a-week, ensuring ophthalmologists 
and their patients are being well advocated for.

The support and assistance we provide to members across a range of issues has increased 
significantly in the past 12 months.

Key activities for the 2016/17 financial year: 

Dr Peter Sumich, Dr Ashish Agar and Mr Kerry Gallagher at the ASO AGM 2016
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OUR PEOPLE

BOARD COUNCIL

Dr Brad Horsburgh President  
(until 22 November 2016)

A/Prof Mark Daniell President  
(from 22 November 2016)

Dr Arthur Karagiannis

Vice President 
(until 19 November 2016)
Director 
(from 20 November 2016)

Dr Diana Semmonds Vice President
(from 19 November 2016)

Dr Heather Mack Honorary Treasurer

Dr Mark Renehan Censor-in-Chief 
(until 8 September 2016)

Dr Justin Mora Censor-in-Chief  
(from 8 September 2016)

Dr Neil Murray Director

Dr Catherine Green Director  
(until 27 May 2017)

A/Prof Nitin Verma Director

Dr Sam Lerts Director

Dr Russell Bach Director

Dr Nigel Morlet Director

New South Wales
Dr Con Moshegov, A/Prof Andrew Chang,  
Dr Daya Sharma, Dr Tasha Micheli, Dr Bob Griffits,  
Dr Christine Younan

Victoria
Dr Andrew Crawford, A/Prof Andrew Symons,  
Dr Lewis Levitz, Dr Kira Michalova, Dr Leisha Riddington

Queensland
Dr Russell Perrin, Dr Rowan Porter, Dr Oben Candemir,  
Dr Daniel Black

South Australia
Dr Grant Raymond, Dr Tim Gray, Dr Peter Cooper

Western Australia
Dr Rob Paul, Dr Jane Khan, Dr Steven Wiffen

Tasmania
A/Prof Paul McCartney

New Zealand
Dr Keith Small, Dr Stephen Ng, Dr Jim Borthwick

Ex-Officios
A/Prof Mark Daniell, Dr Arthur Karagiannis,  
Dr Justin Mora, Dr Diana Semmonds, Dr Heather Mack,  
A/Prof Nitin Verma, Dr Cathy Green, Dr Russell Bach,  
Prof Nigel Morlet, Dr Neil Murray, Dr Sam Lerts, Dr Anthony 
Bennett Hall, Dr Suki Sandhu, Prof Helen Danesh-Meyer,  
Dr Ashish Agar, Dr Brad Horsburgh

Younger Fellows Advisory Group
Dr Nisha Sachdev

Professors Group
Dr Peter McCluskey

Senior and Retired Fellows Group
Dr Emmanuel Gregory

* Council also comprises entire Board

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Dr David Andrews

5
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BRANCHES
New South Wales
Chair – A/Prof Andrew Chang
Vice Chairperson – Dr Robert Griffits
Hon Secretary – Dr Daya Sharma
Hon Treasurer – Dr Christine Younan
Country Vice Chairperson – Dr Neale Mulligan

Victoria
Chair – Dr Andrew Crawford
Hon Secretary – Dr David Van der Straaten
Hon Treasurer – Dr Lewis Levitz

Queensland 
Chair – Dr Russell Perrin
Hon Secretary – Dr Mark Chiang
Hon Treasurer – Dr Oben Candemir

South Australia 
Chair – Dr Garry Davis

Hon Secretary – Dr Stewart Lake
Hon Treasurer – Dr Stewart Lake

Western Australia 
Chair – Dr Nigel Morlet
Hon Secretary – Dr David Delahunty
Hon Treasurer – Dr Tom Cunneen

Tasmania 
Chair – A/Prof Paul McCartney
Hon Secretary – Dr Andrew Traill
Hon Treasurer – Dr Andrew Jones

New Zealand 
Chair – Dr Stephen Ng (until 13 May 2017)

Chair – Dr Brian Kent-Smith (from 13 May 2017)

Hon Secretary and Treasurer – Dr Andrea Vincent

SPECIAL INTEREST GROUPS
Australian and New Zealand Glaucoma 
Society 
Chair – A/Prof Anne Brooks

Australian and New Zealand Society of 
Retinal Specialists
Chair – Dr Jennifer Arnold

Australian and New Zealand Cornea 
Society
Chair – Prof Charles McGhee

Australia and New Zealand Society of 
Ophthalmic Plastic Surgery
Chair – A/Prof Adam Gajdatsy

Neuro-ophthalmology Society of Australia
Chair – Dr John Crompton

Ocular Oncology
Chair – Dr Sunil Warrier

Paediatrics
Chair – A/Prof James Elder

Australian and New Zealand Strabismus 
Society
Chair – Dr Craig Donaldson

Uveitis
Chair – Dr Lyndell Lim

GROUPS
Younger Fellows Advisory Group 
Chair – Dr Nisha Sachdev
Dr Nathan Sachdev
Dr Andrea Ang
Dr Thomas Cunneen
Dr Nathan Walker
Dr Shane Durkin
Dr Narmadai Deva
Dr Jesse Gale
Dr Kenneth Chan
Dr Zoe Gao
Dr Matthew Little
Dr Jennifer Fan Gaskin
Dr Todd Goodwin
Dr Xavier Fagan (until 4 March 2017)

Dr Chameen Samarawickrama

Senior and Retired Fellows Group 
Chair – Dr Emmanuel Gregory

Women in Ophthalmology Advisory Group
Co-Chair – Dr Faye Walker
Co-Chair – Dr Genevieve Oliver
Honorary Secretary – Dr Kerry Meades

Practice Managers Advisory Group
Co-Chair – Mrs Kharissa Cain
Co-Chair – Mrs Lucy Peters
Ms Lisa Hartley
Mrs Michelle De Guia
Ms Peggy Ekeledo-Smith
Mrs Deborah Boyd
Mrs Lara Sullivan
Ms Judith Parnell
Ms Gail Drennan

Professors Group 
Chair – Prof Peter McCluskey

Laypersons Group
Dinesh Garg 
Louise Moylan (until 13 January 2017)

Judi Gorrie 
Avril Souter 
Averil Bones
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AFFILIATED ORGANISATIONS
Australian Society of Ophthalmologists
President – Dr Michael Steiner

The Eye Surgeons’ Foundation
Chair – Mr Peter Keel

Ophthalmology New Zealand
Chair – Dr Michael Merriman

Ophthalmic Research Institute of Australia
Chair – Prof Stephanie Watson

Save Sight Society of New Zealand Inc
Chair – Dr Dipika Patel

COMMITTEES – QUALIFICATION 
AND EDUCATION COMMITTEE
Chair – Mark Renehan (until 7 September 2016)

Chair – Dr Justin Mora (Chair from 8 September 2016)

Prof Glen Gole
Dr Stephen Cains
A/Prof Mei-Ling Tay-Kearney
Dr Craig Donaldson
Dr Mark Walland
Dr Stephen Colley
Dr Kristin Bell
Dr Kathryn Billing
Prof Max Conway
Dr Andrew Apel
Dr Neil Murray
Dr Ainsley Morris
Dr Michael Merriman
Dr Weng Sehu
Dr Joanne Sims
Dr Sukhpal Sandhu
Dr I-Van Ho
Dr Leanne Cheung
Dr Andrew Thompson
Dr Stephen Jones
Dr Jacqueline Beltz
Dr Catherine Green
Prof Geoffrey Lam
Dr Sunil Warrier
Dr Maria Moon
Dr Timothy Gray
Dr Peter O’Connor (until 19 November 2016)

A/Prof Jagjit Gilhotra (until 20 May 2017)

Dr Catherine Slaughter (until 8 August 2016)

Dr Alexander Tan (Trainee Representative – November 2016)

Dr Katja Ullrich (Trainee Representative – May 2017)

QEC SUB-COMMITTEES
Examination Boards
Ophthalmic Sciences
Chair – Dr Andrew Thompson
Dr Peter Hadden 
Dr Jean-Louis De Sousa 
Dr Brent Gaskin 
Dr Anne Lee 
Dr Paula Berdoukas 
Dr Kiran Sindhu 
Dr Magdalena Guzowski 
Dr Shanel Sharma 
Dr Daya Sharma 
Dr Randev Mendis 
Dr Patrick Lockie 
Dr Charles Su 
Dr Daniel Polya 
Dr Vivek Phakey 
Dr Robert Paul 
Dr James Jabbour 
Dr Chandrashekar Balachandran 
Dr Tse Wing Yeung 
Dr Brent Skippen 
Dr Mark Saunders 
Dr Jane Khan 
Dr Simon Skalicky 
Dr Rohan Essex 
Dr Kayvan Arashvand 
Prof Paul McMenamin 
Dr Andrew Thompson
Dr Mark Whiting
Dr Jed Lusthaus
Dr Mark Steiner
Dr John Dickson
Dr Dzung Vu

Ophthalmic Basic  
Competencies and Knowledge
Chair – Dr Neil Murray
Dr Gayatri Banerjee
Dr Sam Lerts
Dr Michelle Gajus
Dr Rohan Merani
Dr Stuart Carroll
Dr Kiran Sindhu
Dr Patrick Lockie
Dr Daya Sharma
Dr Tu Tran
Dr Ridia Lim
Dr Christine Younan
Dr David Wechsler
Dr Laurence Sullivan
Dr Charles Su
Dr Anton Van Heerden
A/Prof Celia Chen
Dr Elsie Chan
Dr Tess Huynh
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Dr Nisha Sachdev
Dr Rajeev Chalasani
Dr Andrew Kaines
Dr Gurmit Uppal
Dr Malcolm Capon

Ophthalmic Pathology
Chair – A/Prof Max Conway 
Dr Vivek Chowdhury
Dr Sureka Thiagalingam
Dr Nikhil Kumar
Dr Diane Kenwright
Dr Tom Dodd
Dr Svetlana Cherepanoff
Dr Cesar Salinas-La Rosa

RANZCO Advanced Clinical Examination
Chair – Dr Maria Moon (from 7 September 2016)

Chair – Dr Justin Mora (until 6 September 2016)

Prof Gerard Sutton
Dr Kimberley Tan
Dr Simon Taylor 
Prof Helen Danesh-Meyer
Dr Rebecca Stack
Dr Sean Every
Dr Diana Conrad
Dr Stephen Ohlrich
Dr Anna Galanopoulos
Dr Anastasius Economos
Dr Mark Chehade
Dr Maged Atalla
Dr Peter Meagher
Dr Sanjeewa Wickremasinghe
Dr Trevor Gin
Prof Geoffrey Lam
Dr Andrew Narita
A/Prof Alex P Hunyor (until 31 May 2017)

Dr Ross Fitzsimmons (until 6 September 2016) 

Dr Georgina Kourt (from 6 September 2016)

Dr Craig Donaldson (from 1 January 2017)

Dr Tu Tran (from 1 January 2017)

Dr Fraser Imrie (from 1 January 2017)

Dr David Pendergrast (from 1 June 2017) 

Continuing Professional Development
Chair – Dr Sukhpal Sandhu 
Dr Kolin Foo
Dr Jason Cassar
Dr Timothy Gray
Dr Andrea Ang 
Dr Jennifer Fan Gaskin 
Dr Guy Bylsma 
Dr Alok Sharma 
Dr Aanchal Gupta 
Dr Sam Lerts 
Dr Aanchal Gupta (from 25 May 2017)

Directors of Training
Dr Joanne Sims
Dr Leanne Cheung

Dr Craig Donaldson
Dr I-Van Ho
Dr Sunil Warrier
Dr Kathryn Billing
Dr Jacqueline Beltz
Dr Stephen Colley

Australian SIMG
Chair – Dr Stephen Cains
Dr Mark Chiang 
Dr Joshua Hann 
Dr Vinithra Kumar 
Dr Tow Lim 
Dr Ainsley Morris 
A/Prof Nitin Verma 
Mr John Horner, External Member
Prof John Crompton (until 30 November 2016)
Dr Alessandra Martins (until 30 November 2016) 

Dr Malcolm Capon (from 1 January 2017) 

A/Prof Philip Polkinghorne (from 1 January 2017) 

New Zealand IMG
Chair – Dr Ainsley Morris
Dr Sam Kain
Dr Rod Keillor
Dr Keith Maslin
Dr Michael Merriman
Dr Bheemanagouda Patil
A/Prof Philip Polkinghorne

Trainee Progression
Chair – Dr Stephen Jones 
Dr Stephen Best
Dr Stephanie Young
A/Prof Mei-Ling Tay-Kearney

Trainee Representative Group
Chair – Dr Katja Ullrich
Dr Chee-Foong Chong
Dr Matthew Cranstoun
Dr Nicholas Toalster
Dr Michael Brown
Dr Samuel Dance
Dr Nathan Wong
Dr Tanya Karaconji (until December 2016)

Dr Parth Shah (until December 2016)

Dr Timothy Greenwell (until December 2016)

Dr Marina Rayside (until December 2016)

Dr Cameron McLintock (until December 2016)

Dr Alexander Tan (until December 2016)

Training Post Inspectorate Committee
Chair – Prof Glen Gole (from 19 November 2016)

Chair – Dr Peter O’Connor (until 19 November 2016) 
Dr Brian Sloan
Dr David Kaufman
Dr David Tamblyn
Prof John Crompton
A/Prof Mark Elder
Dr Richard Stawell
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COMMITTEES – ADVOCACY AND 
AWARENESS
Indigenous Committee
Co-Chair – Dr Ashish Agar
Co-Chair – A/Prof Angus Turner

Prof Hugh Taylor
Dr William Glasson
Dr Mark Loane
Dr Tim Henderson
Dr Damien Louis
Dr Rowan Porter
Dr Graham Hay-Smith
Dr Antony Bedggood
Dr Seyed Razavi

International Development Committee 
Chair – Dr Anthony Bennett Hall 
Dr Mark Renehan (until 19 November 2016)

Dr Neil Murray 
Dr Richard Hart 
Dr Brian Sloan 
Dr Catherine Green 
Dr Justin Mora 
A/Prof Deb Colville (from 18 February 2017)

Dr Garry Brian (from 18 February 2017)

Leadership Development Committee
Chair – Dr Catherine Green
Dr Christine Younan
Prof David Mackey

Medicare Advisory Committee
Chair – A/Prof Alex P Hunyor (Chair until 19 November 2016) 

Chair – Dr Bradley Horsburgh (Chair from 19 November 2016)

Dr Michael Steiner 
A/Prof Ross Benger 
Dr William Glasson 
Dr Peter Sumich 
Dr Clayton Barnes 
Dr Allan Rosenberg 
Dr Rohan Merani 

Public Health Committee
Chair – Prof Stephanie Watson
Dr Nathan Sachdev
Dr Luke Maccheron
Dr Brighu Swamy
Dr Neil Sharma
Dr Ju-Lee Ooi
Dr Graham Wilson
Dr Jane Khan
Dr Joanne Dondey
Dr John Downie
Dr James McAlister

Therapeutics Committee
Chair – A/Prof Andrew Symons

Dr Keith Ong
Dr Alexandros Ioannidis
A/Prof Michael Goggin
Prof Stephanie Watson
Prof Mark Gillies
Dr John Males
Dr Georgia Cleary
Dr Penelope Allen

Workforce Committee
Chair – Dr Bradley Horsburgh
Dr Xavier Fagan
Dr Sam Lerts
Dr Tim Henderson
Dr Michael Merriman
Dr Josephine Richards
Dr Andrea Ang
Dr Deepa Taranath
Dr Timothy Steele
Dr Mark Renehan (until 20 November 2016)

Dr Justin Mora (from 20 November 2016)

Dr Zoe Gao (from 18 February 2017)

COMMITTEES – MEMBER 
ENGAGEMENT
Awards Committee
Dr Bradley Horsburgh (until 22 November 2016)

Dr Arthur Karagiannis (until 1 January 2017)

Dr Diana Semmonds 
A/Prof Mark Daniell 

CEO Editorial Board
Editors-in-Chief:
Professor Robert Casson 
A/Prof Salmaan Al-Qureshi 

Associate Editors:
Dr Susan Carden 
Professor Dennis Lam 
Professor Charles McGhee 
Professor Peter Savino 

Section Editors:
Glaucoma
A/Prof Anne Brooks 
A/Prof Paul Chew 
Dr Carlos Gustavo De Moraes 
Prof Stuart Graham  
Dr Nathan Kerr  
Dr Jonathan Myers  
Dr Ashish Agar –  (until 10 March 2017) 

Dr Ike Ahmed –  (until 15 May 2017)

Neuro-Ophthalmology
Prof Peter Savino 

Anterior Segment
Dr Jacqueline Beltz 
Dr Jay Meyer 
A/Prof Dipika Patel 
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Dr Srinivas Rao 
Prof Rasik Vajpayee 
Prof Stephanie Watson 
Dr Mark Rosenblatt (until 12 October 2016)

Dr Jennifer Craig (until 13 March 2017)

Cataract
A/Prof Chandra Bala 
A/Prof Michael Goggin 
Dr Tim Roberts 

Visual Sciences
Dr Chandra Balaratnasingam 
A/Prof Nigel Barnett 
A/Prof Nick Di Girolamo 
A/Prof Trevor Sherwin 
Dr John Wood 

Paediatrics & Strabismus
Dr Susan Carden 
Dr William Good 

Uveitis
Dr Claire Hooper 
A/Prof Lyndell Lim 
Dr Christine Younan 

Posterior Segment
A/Prof Rohan Essex  
A/Prof Jolly Gilhotra 
A/Prof Timothy Lai 

Orbital & Plastics
Mr Raman Malhotra 
Dr Stephen Ng 
Prof Tim Sullivan 
Dr Jurij Bilyk  (until 10 March 2017)

Epidemiology
Dr Ching-Yu Cheng 
Dr John Landers 
Dr Cathy McCarty 
Prof Mingguang He  (until 10 March 2017)

Medical Retina
Dr Aman Chandra 
A/Prof Andrew Chang 
Dr Xavier Fagan 
A/Prof Samantha Fraser-Bell 
Dr Sanj Wickremasinghe 
Dr Nadia Waheed (until 8 February 2017)

Genetics
Dr Kathryn Burdon 
A/Prof Alex Hewitt 
A/Prof Andrea Vincent 

Ocular Oncology
A/Prof R Max Conway 
Prof Bertil Damato 
Dr Carol Shields

Ophthalmic Pharmacotherapy
Prof Raid Alany 

Biostatistics
Dr Greg Gamble 

CPD
Dr Sukhpal Singh Sandhu  

Managing Editor: 
Ms Victoria Cartwright

Nominations Committee
A/Prof Mark Daniell
Dr Diana Semmonds
A/Prof Justin Mora
Dr Brad Horsburgh 

Local Congress Convenors
Dr Xavier Fagan

Dr Daniel Chiu

Scientific Program Committee
Chair – Prof Helen Danesh-Meyer
Dr Bradley Horsburgh (until 22 November 2016)

A/Prof Mark Daniell (from 22 November 2016)

Prof Charles McGhee 
Dr Christine Younan 
Dr Daniel Chiu (until 01 January 2017)

A/Prof James Elder 
Dr Noel Alpins 
Prof Samantha Fraser-Bell 
Dr Shuan Dai 
Dr Simon Dean 
Dr Thomas Hardy (until 22 November 2016)

Dr Xavier Fagan (until 1 January 2017)

Dr Brett O’Donnell (from 01 January 2017)

A/Prof Angus Turner (from 22 November 2016)

Dr Fred Chen (from 01 January 2017)

Review Panel
Dr Alex Hewitt
Dr Amy Cohn
Dr Andrea Ang
Dr Brett O’Donnell (until 22 November 2016)

Dr Clare Fraser
Dr Elsie Chan
Prof Gerard Sutton
Dr Graham Hay-Smith
Dr Mitchell Lawlor
Dr Ridia Lim
A/Prof Andrew Symons
Dr Simon Skalicky

COMMITTEES – STANDARDS
Clinical Standards Committee
Chair – Dr Richard Wolfe
Dr Paul Beaumont
Dr Daniel Polya
Dr Elaine Wong
Dr Julian Mazzetti
Dr Robert Buttery
Dr Keith Ong
Dr Adrian Fung
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Code of Conduct Committee
Chair – Dr Arthur Karagiannis
Dr Patrick Lockie
Dr Diana Semmonds
Dr Grant Raymond
Dr John Kennedy
Dr Adam Watson
Dr Neil Sharma
Dr Robert Griffits

Human Research Ethics Committee
Chair – Prof Mark Radford
A/Prof Alex BL Hunyor 
Dr Lyndell Lim
Prof Paul Healey
Dr Colin Clement
Ms Kylie Lloyd
Mr Bradley Sheehan
Dr Christopher Basten
Ms Rosemary MacDougal
Ms Wendy Radford (until 20 April 2017)

Professional Standards Committee
Chair – A/Prof Alex BL Hunyor 
Dr Richard Smith
Dr Graham Hay-Smith
Dr Michael Fisk
Ms Moira McInerney
Dr Timothy Nolan
Ms Elizabeth Donkers
Ms Donna Glenn
Dr Robert Griffits (until 9 April 2017)

Dr James Borthwick (until 9 April 2017)

COMMITTEES – COLLEGE 
ACTIVITIES
Archives and Museum Committee
Chair – Dr David Kaufman
Prof Mark Radford
A/Prof Bruce Hadden
Prof Ian McAllister
Mr Jeff Palmer
Dr Robert Weatherhead
Mrs Kirsten Campbell

Digital Interface Committee
Chair – Dr Sam Lerts 
Dr Chandrashan Perera 
Dr Ashley Kras 
Prof Mark Gillies
Dr Richard Sheard (from 13 February 2017) 

Diversity and Inclusion Committee
Chair – Dr Bradley Horsburgh
Dr Diana Semmonds
Dr Sam Lerts
Dr Catherine Green
Dr Justin Mora

Mrs Judi Gorrie
Dr Nicholas Toalster
Dr Emmanuel Gregory
Dr Nisha Sachdev

Finance, Audit and Risk Management 
Committee
Chair – Dr Heather Mack
A/Prof Mark Daniell (from 22 November 2016)

Dr Russell Bach
Dr Bradley Horsburgh (until 22 November 2016)

Membership Committee
Dr Justin Mora 
A/Prof Mark Daniell 
Dr Bradley Horsburgh (until 19 November 2016)

Dr Mark Renehan (until 19 November 2016)

Mentor Coordinators
Prof Geoffrey Lam
Dr Anne Lee
Dr Sonia Yuen
Dr Kathryn Billing
Dr Anita Tanson
Dr Robin Meusemann
Dr Joanna Koppens (until 19 November 2016)

Dr Robin Jones (from 13 February 2016)
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RANZCO STAFF
Dr David Andrews
Chief Executive Officer

Barry Diletti
Office Manager

EDUCATION AND TRAINING
Ruth Ferraro (from 24 October 2016)

Deputy CEO and Head of Education

Vocational Training Program
Penelope Gormly (until 19 October 2016)

General Manager, Education and Training

Craig Dowling
General Manager, Trainees and Examinations

Neridah Baker (until 25 October 2016)

Manager, Curriculum and Course Development

Lenn Fay
Manager, Monitoring and Evaluation

Adam Kiernan
Manager, E-Learning, Indigenous Health and HREC

Antonelle Clemente - Marquez
Manager, Selection and Assessment

Anthony Lehner (from 19 September 2016)

Education Coordinator

Diana Russino
Coordinator, Trainee Support

Felicity Tripolone 
Coordinator, Basic Exams and Training Post Accreditation

Lee Cummings (until 6 April 2017) 

STP Project Officer

Professional Development
Tanya Parsons (until 14 December 2016)

General Manager, Post Vocational Education and 
Standards

Simon Janda
Manager, Professional Development

Monica Nation (from 6 February 2017)

Coordinator, Education

IT
Issam Ibrahim (from 24 May 2017)

Manager, IT 

Nicolas Kott
IT & Business Systems Administrator

Elaheh Deldarbanadaki (from 25 October 2016)

DBA and Website Developer 

POLICY & PROGRAMS
Gerhard Schlenther
General Manager, Policy & Programs
Dr Guy Gillor
Policy Officer

Gail Van Heerden
Policy Officer

Helen Hunter (from 12 July 2016)
NZ Branch Support Officer

MEMBERSHIP SERVICES
Alexandra Arancibia Garcia
General Manager, Membership Services

Sarah Stedman 
Manager - Events & Industry Relationships  

Keo Chiem
Receptionist

COMMUNICATIONS AND ADVOCACY
Emma Carr
General Manager, Commuications   

Francine Dutton
Design and Sponsorship Officer   

Philomena Graham (until14 September 2016)
Website and Digital Coordinator

Maheen Imam
Communications Officer 

Laura Sefaj (until 16 June 2017)
Senior Communications Coordinator   

FINANCE
Andrew Young 
Financial Controller

Yan Lau
Finance Assistant 

Priska Juventia
Finance Assistant
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017
The Royal Australian and New Zealand College of Ophthalmologists (“RANZCO” or “the College”) is a company limited 
by guarantee and registered with the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission.

The College is a member or the Australian Council for International Development (ACFID) and adheres to the ACFID 
Code of Conduct.

The Financial Statements presented include all Branches and Special Interest Groups (SIGs) of the College.

DIRECTORS (Responsible Entities)
The following directors were in office at the date of this report:

A/Prof Mark Daniell 
Dr Diana Semmonds 
Dr Heather Mack
Dr Justin Mora 
Dr Arthur Karagiannis 
A/Prof Nitin Verma AM 
Dr Neil Murray 
Dr Russell Bach
Dr Somsak Lertsumitkul 
Prof Nigel Morlet 

Description of the College’s Purpose, Objectives/aims and values
Our vision is to be recognised as a world leader in eye care education, training, and setting of policy and standards.

Our mission is to improve eye healthcare through education, communication, collaboration and advocacy, nationally 
and internationally.

Description of the College’s most significant aid and development activities
RANZCO has continued to be active at the global level advocating for capacity building of ophthalmology training 
programs and continuing professional development of ophthalmologists in low resource settings, with members 
participating in International Agency for the Prevention of Blindness (IAPB) committees informing policy. 

This included RANZCO’s International Scholarship Program, with four ophthalmologists awarded the RANZCO 
International Scholarship to attend the College Annual Scientific Congress in Melbourne and present at the 
International Development Workshop. 

RANZCO also conducted visits to countries in the Asia-Pacific region as part of our capacity building exercises. This 
included teaching visits to the Pacific Eye Institute (PEI) in Fiji and the Regional Eye Centre (REC) in the Solomon 
Islands; visits to Papua New Guinea to identify training capacity needs, after which RANZCO led the ophthalmology 
curriculum review in collaboration with the University of Papua New Guinea, and to contribute to an HR workshop; 
visits in Cambodia to support the ophthalmologist examination process, participate in the Cambodia Eye Health 
forum and feed into the ophthalmology residency training discussions. RANZCO staff also participated in the APAO 
leadership development program in Ulan Bator, Mongolia and attended 10GA IAPB meeting hosted in South Africa.

Company Secretary 

Dr David Andrews and Mrs Alexandra Arancibia-Garcia
Charity street address and principal place of business
94 – 98 Chalmers Street
Surry Hill NSW 2010
Auditor 
Grant Thornton
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AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
The auditor’s independence declaration for the year ended 30 June 2017 has been received and is attached.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors and in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

   

Mark Daniell, Director    Heather Mack, Director
Sydney, 19th August 2017    Sydney, 19th August 2017
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 
INCOME
  2017  2016

Revenue

Membership subscriptions  2,916,736 2,695,092

Education & training fees  1,659,325 1,661,036

Scientific congress & conferences  1,543,679 1,692,558

Investment income  503,575 554,568

Scholarship & travel grants  14,979 170,700

Other income from ordinary activities  651,633 465,625

Eye Surgeons’ Foundation reimbursement  316,250 349,695

Overseas development  73,445 220,874

Realised fair value movements on disposal of investments (60,392) 17,233

Bequests  5,629 -

Total revenue  7,624,859 7,827,381

Expenditure

Employee benefits  3,118,388 2,875,418

Eye Surgeons’ Foundation costs  316,250 349,695

Education, training & other service costs  297,203 495,939

Professional fees  159,444 189,481

Depreciation  261,676 235,608

Communications costs  229,636 381,034

Property costs  198,607 392,183

Travel & accommodation costs  272,597 245,651

Contribution to ORIA  150,650 147,696

Donations – Save Sight Society of NZ  13,992 13,992

Donations – others  - 138,250

Donations – ASO  36,364 45,504

Donations – The Eye Surgeons’ Foundation  10,000 -

Printing, publicity and public relations  329,128 275,031

Projects & conference sponsorship  105,735 119,888

Branch expenditure  232,186 384,462

Branch conference & congress meeting  1,177,039 1,002,447

Funds to international programs  40,646 199,952

Program support costs  32,799 20,923

Total expenditure  6,982,340 7,513,154

Net surplus for the year  642,519 314,227

Other comprehensive income

Foreign currency exchange gain / (loss)  (1,656) 47,346

Movement in available for Sale Reserve - financial assets 528,587 (259,637)

Asset Revaluation – Land and Buildings  - 3,880,418

Total other comprehensive income    526,931 3,668,127

Total comprehensive income for the year  1,169,450 3,982,354
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
 Notes 2017 2016

  $ $

Assets 

Current

Cash and cash equivalents 3 5,802,932  5,436,872

Receivables 4 450,660 523,482

Prepayments 5 670,236 394,050

Total current assets  6,923,828 6,354,404

Non-current

Available-for-sale financial assets 6 9,486,409 8,679,011

Property, plant and equipment 7 8,543,540 8,815,708

Inventories 8 20,750 20,750

Total non-current assets  18,050,699 17,515,469

Total assets  24,974,527 23,869,873

Liabilities 

Current 

Payables 9 3,502,005 3,585,680

Provisions 10 152,640 110,701

Total current liabilities  3,654,645 3,696,381

Liabilities    

Non-current 

Provisions 10 63,054 86,114

Total non-current liabilities  63,054 86,114

 Total liabilities  3,717,699 3,782,495

Net assets  21,256,828 20,087,378

Funds

Accumulated funds 13 16,659,827 14,632,676

Reserves  4,597,001 5,454,702

Total funds  21,256,828 20,087,378

This statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

 Notes 2017 2016

  $ $

Operating activities

Receipts from membership, training fees and operations  7,998,404 7,857,600

Proceeds from government for Specialist Training Programs  1,796,628 1,917,193

Payments for Specialist Training Programs  (1,827,804) (2,085,034)

Payments to suppliers and employees  (7,857,699) (8,073,282)

Net cash provided by operating activities 12 109,529 (383,523)

Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  - (1,748,669)

Proceeds from/(payments for) investments  (247,044) 948,701

Investment income  503,575 554,568

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities  256,531 (245,400)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents  366,060 (628,923)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year  5,436,872 6,065,795

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 3 5,802,932 5,436,872

This statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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RESPONSIBLE ENTITIES’ DECLARATION
In the opinion of the Responsible Entities (Directors) of The Royal Australian and New Zealand College of 
Ophthalmologists:

1. The financial statements and notes of The Royal Australian and New Zealand College of Ophthalmologists are in 
accordance with the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, including:

a. Giving a true and fair view of its financial position as at 30 June 2017 and of its performance for the 
financial year ended on that date; and

b. Complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits 
Commission Regulation 2013; and

2. There are reasonable grounds to believe that The Royal Australian and New Zealand College of 
Ophthalmologists will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors (Responsible Entities):

   

Mark Daniell, Director Heather Mack, Director
Sydney, 19th August 2017 Sydney, 19th August 2017 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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